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Dear Board M em bers 

Vassle M . Richardson 
President 

Louisiana law requires that an annual sworn  financial statement be furnished to the Legislative 
Auditor w ithin six m onth s of the close of each fiscal year in accordance with  generally 

accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards (GAAS) by a certified public accountant. Pursuant to that requirement, we 
hereby issue th e Comprehensive Annual Finan cial Report of the Bossier Parish School Board 

(School Board) for the year ended June 30, 2002. 

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of th e School 
Board. Consequently, m an agement assum es full responsibility for the com pleteness and 
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for 
making these representations, man agement of the School Board has established a 
comprehensive intern al control framework th at is designed both to protect the School Boar d's 
assets from loss, theE, or misuse an d to compile sufficient reliable inform ation for th e 
preparation of the School Board's financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the 
cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Bossier Parish School Board's 
comprehensive framework of intern al controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather 
than absolute assurance th at the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. 
As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, th is financial report is 
complete and reliable in all material respects. 

KPM G LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants, has audited the School Board's 
financial statements. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assuran ce 
that th e finan cial statements of the School Board for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 ar e 
free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved exam ining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting th e amounts an d disclosures in the finan cial statements; assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the 
overall finan cial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon th e 
audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an  unqualified opinion that the School 
Board's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 are fairly presented in 
conform ity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP). The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of the financial 
section of this report. 
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The independent audit of the financial statements of the School Boar d was part of a broader, federally mandated 
"Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single 
Audit engagements require th e independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial 
statements, but also on the audited government's intern al controls an d compliance with legal requirem ents, with 
special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the adm inistration of federal awards. 
These reports are available in the School Board's separ ately issued Single Audit Report. 

GAAP requires th at man agement provide a narrative introduction, overview, an d analysis to accompan y the 
basic f'mancial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of 
tran smittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The School Board's 
M D&A can be found immediately after th e report of the independent auditors. 

PR O FILE O F TH E BO SSIER  PA RISH  SCH O O L BO A RD 

The School Board was created by Louisian a Revised Statute (LSA-R.S.) 17:51 to provide public education for 
th e children within Bossier Parish. Th e School Board is authorized by LSA-R.S. 17:81 to establish policies and 
regulations for its own government consistent with the laws of the state of Louisiana and the regulations of the 
Louisiana Boar d of Elementary an d Secondary Education. The School Board is comprised of 12 members who 
are elected from 12 districts for concurrent term s of four years. 

The School Board operates 35 schools within the parish with a total enrollm ent exceeding 18,000 pupils. The 
School Board provides a full ran ge of educational serv ices appropriate to gr ade levels kindergarten through 
gr ade tw elve. These include regular an d enriched academic education, special education for handicapped 
youngsters, occupational education, and man y individualized progr ams such as specialized instruction for 
disadvantaged stu dents and those with limited English proficiency. These basic progr am s are supplemented by a 

wide variety of offerings in the fine arts and athletics. In conjunction with the regular educational programs, 
some of th ese schools offer special education an d/or adult education progr ams. In addition, the School Board 
provides transportation and school food services for the students. 

Prior to June 30, the Superintendent subm its an  annual operating budget to the School Boar d for the fiscal year 
comm encing th e prior July 1. The operating budget serv es as th e foundation for the School Board's financial 

plan ning and control. A public hearing is then conducted after proper offi cial journal notification to obtain 
taxpayer comments. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in th is report. 

FACTOR S AFFECTING FIN ANCIAL CO NDITION 

Th e inform ation presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the 
broader perspective of the specific environment within which the School Board operates. 

Lo cal econom y. Th e Bossier Parish School System is located in the northwest part of the state and is part of the 

economic "hub" for this region. During 2001-2002, Bossier Parish enjoyed a stable economy. 

During fiscal 2002, Bossier Parish continued to experience new commercial and residential construction. 
Residential construction continues to expan d North, East an d South Bossier Parish, primarily in single family 
dwellings. M any new businesses continue to build in North Bossier along th e 1-220 by-pass an d are evidence of 

Vl 
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continued growth an d expansion. Tourist activity continues to be strong, primarily as a result of riverboat 
gam ing. 

Bar ksdale Air Force Base, which currently employs over 7,000 people in the area, remains as viable and active 

as it has in the past. The mission of Barksdale is still a major part of our national defense. 

W ith  the Red River connecting Bossier Parish to the City of Shreveport an d Caddo Par ish, the condition of the 
Shr eveport economy directly and indirectly effects Bossier Parish. The economy of Shr eveport continues to be 
stable. Growth experienced in retail sales, employment, and residential and commercial construction are 
evidence of this gr owth and stability . The continued expan sion of the Caddo Bossier Port continues to have 
positive effects on the economy and provides a major link with other parts of the state. 1-20 and 1-49 continue tO 
provide great access to th e ar ea. Riverboat gam ing continues to make a significant contribution to the local 

econom y. 

Sales tax collections for the School Board continue to be stable and exceeded 2000-2001 collections by $46,926 

Long-term financial nlannin~. The School Board has a long-ran ge financial planning committee, which deals 
w ith  long-term finances. Future revenue sources have been a m ain concern for the Board. Planning has been 
made for a renewal election for ad valorem taxes th at renew in 2004 and 2006. New revenue sources have also 
been explored to keep salaries of Bossier Par ish teachers competitive with neighboring school districts. The 
comm ittee has also worked on planning for future new capital expenditures including new buildings and 
equipment. The Board also has planned for continued building of finan cial reserves. 

Cash m anagem ent policies and practices. The School Board has an aggr essive cash man agement program 
which consists of expediting th e receipt of revenues an d prudently investing available cash in obligations 
eollateralized by instruments issued by the United States Government or federal government agencies created by 
an act of Congr ess or insured by tbe Federal Deposit Insuran ce Corporation. The total am ount of interest earned 
was $550,356 for the year ended June 30, 2002. Th is amount decreased by $368,023, or 40% from 2001 due to 
th e dramatic decline in interest rates over the past year . Interest earned for 2002 was distributed as follows: 

General fund 
Special revenue funds 
Debt service fund 

Capital projects fund 
Permanent fund 

$ 220,751 
3,875 

101,458 
16,643 

207.629 

$ 550,356 

Risk m anagem ent. The School Board maintains a combination of self-insuran ce and stop-loss coverage to 
m anage its risk of loss from property dam age, theft, an d claims against employees. In addition, the School 
Board is self-insured for gr oup hospitalization. A list of insuran ce in force is included in Table 15. 

Pension and other post em ploym ent benefits. The School Board provides a defined benefit pension 
its employees through two cost-sharing multiple-employer statewide plans. The School Board 
obligations in connection w ith employee benefits offered through these plans beyond its an nual 
paym ents to the plan . 

plan  for 
has no 
required 
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The School Board also provides post-retirement health care and life insurance benefits for its retired employees. 
As of the end of th e current fiscal year, there were 1,102 retired employees receiving th ese benefits, which are 

financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

Additional information on the School Board's pension arran gements and postemploym ent benefits can be found 
in notes 6 and 7 in th e notes to th e basic finan cial statements. 

AW ARDS 

The Government Finan ce Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting to the School Board for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2001. The School Board has received this prestigious award each year beginning with th e fiscal 
year ended June 30, 1991. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the School Board published an  
easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfied both GAAP and applicable legal 

requirem ents. 

The Association of School Business Officials (ASBO) International awarded a Certificate of Excellence in 
Financial Reporting Award for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2001. Th e School Board has received this prestigious award each year  beginning w ith the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 1991. Th e award represents a significant achievement by the School Board and reflects our 
comm itment to the highest standards of school system finan cial reporting. 

The Certificate of Achievement and Certificate of Excellence are valid for a period of one year only. W e believe 
th at our current CAFR continues to meet the certificate requirements, and we are submitting it to both GFOA 
and ASBO to determine its eligibility for an other certificate. 

ACK NO W LEDGEM ENTS 

The prepar ation of th is report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of 
the entire staff of the Finan ce Department. W e want to express our appreciation to all members of th e 
department who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. W e also thank th e members of the 
School Board for their interest an d support in plan ning and conducting th e fmancial operations of the school 

system in a responsible an d progressive manner. 

Vnl 

Director of Finance and Business Affairs 
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333 Texas Street, Suite 1900 
Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Auditors' Report 

M embers of the Bossier Parish School Board 
Benton, Louisiana: 

W e have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
an d the aggregate remaining fund information of the Bossier Parish School Board (School Board) as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2002, which collectively comprise the School Boar d's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the 
School Board's man agement. Our responsibility is to express opinions on th ese basic financial statements 
based on our audit. 

W e conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
Am erica and th e stan dards applicable to finan cial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of th e United States. Those stan dards require that we plan an d perform  
the audit to obtain reasonable assuran ce about wheth er th e basic financial statements are free of material 
misstatem ent. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting th e amounts an d 
disclosures in the finan cial statements. An  audit also includes assessing th e accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by man agement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. W e believe that our  audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statem ents referred to above present fairly, in all m aterial respects, the 

respective finan cial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of th e School Board as of June 30, 2002, an d the respective chan ges in financial position 
thereof for the year then ended in conform ity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

As described in note 15 to th e basic finan cial statements, the School Boar d adopted the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and 

Management's Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments; Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statem ent No. 37, Basic Financial Statements - and M anagement's D iscussion and 

Analysis - for State and Local Governments: Omnibus; Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures; and Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and 
Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements in 2002. 



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Novem ber 1, 
2002 on our consideration of th e School Board's internal control over finan cial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance w ith certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read 

in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

The management's discussion an d an alysis and budget comparison schedules listed as Required 
Supplemental Inform ation in the table of contents are not a required part of th e basic financial statements 
but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in th e United 
States of America. W e have applied certain lim ited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of 
man agement regarding the methods of measurement an d presentation of the required supplementary 
information. However, we did not audit the information an d express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for th e purpose of form ing an opinion on th e financial statem ents th at 
collectively com prise the School Boar d's basic financial statem ents. The com bining and individual fund 
statem ents and schedules listed in th e accompan ying table of contents as supplem ental inform ation ar e 
presented for purposes of additional an alysis an d are not a required part of the basic finan cial statem ents. 

The combining an d individual fund statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in th e audit of th e basic financial statements an d, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in all 
m aterial respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

The accompanying finan cial information included in the introductory  and statistical sections as listed in 

the table of contents has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements, and accordingly we express no opinion on this inform ation. 

N ovember 1, 2002 

~ - Lt_'P 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
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M anagement's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2002 

W e offer readers of the Bossier Parish School Board's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis 
of the financial activities of th e Bossier Par ish School Board for th e fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. W e 
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional inform ation that we 
have furnished in our letter of transm ittal. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the new reporting model adopted by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - 
and Management's Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments issued June 1999. Certain 
comparative information betw een th e current year and the prior year is required to be presented in the M D &A. 
However, because th is is th e first year of implementing the new reporting model, certain necessary comparative 
inform ation of th e previous year was not prepared. Considering the finan cial resources necessary to prepare this 
inform ation for the prior year, an d that the GASB Statement No. 34 permits the omission of the comparative 
inform ation in th e first year of adoption of the new reporting model, the School Boar d has elected to exclude th e 
information in this report. Subsequent reports will include the comparative information. 

Financial H ighlights 

Key financial highlights for the 2001-02 fiscal year include the following: 

~ Statement of Net Assets - The assets of the Bossier Parish School Board exceeded its liabilities at the close 
of the most recent fiscal year by $47,018,689 (net assets). Of this amount, the School Board has $2,423,011 
of negative unrestricted net assets. The balan ce in compensated absences payable, which is recorded in the 
governm ent-wide financial statements, contributed to this deficit. Long-term liabilities such as 
compensated absences, which are not due an d payable in the current period, are not reported as fund 
liabilities. 

~ Statement of Activities - The total net assets of the Bossier Parish School Board increased by $4,017,775 
for th e year ended June 30, 2002. Approximately $2.2 million of this increas e came from increas ed ad 
valorem  tax collections. 

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet - As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Bossier Par ish School 
Board's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balance of $20,353,293, an increas e of 
$7,063,843 in comparison with the prior fiscal year. The majority of this fund balance is comprised of 
approximately (1) $2.2 million which is available for spending within the General Fund, (2) $4.7 million 
which is reserved for the payment of outstanding bond issues within the Debt Service Funds, an d (3) $9.4 
million which is reserved for in structional enhancement within the Bossier Educational Excellence 
Perm an ent Fund. 

~ Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues. Expenditures. an d Changes in Fund Balances - Total 
revenues for the year ended June 30, 2002 for th e governmental fu nds of the Bossier Par ish School Board 

am ounted to $122,394,046. Approximately 83% of this amount is received from three major revenue 
sources: (1) $59.4 million from Louisian a's State Equalization, (2) $22.5 million from local sales an d use 
taxes, an d (3) $19.3 million from local ad valorem taxes. 

4 (Continued) 
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M anagement's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2002 

~ General Fund's Ending Fund Balance - At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for 
the General Fund, a major fund, was $2,214,665, or 2.1% of total General Fund expenditures. The total 
(undesignated) is available for spending at the Board's discretion. 

~ Capital Assets - Total capital assets (net of depreciation) were $54,815,047 or 59.6% of the total assets. 
The Bossier Parish School Board uses these assets to provide educational serv ices to children and adults; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. 

~ Long-Term Debt - The Bossier Parish School Board's total debt increased $1,080,233 (5.5%) during the 
current fiscal year . 

Overview of the Financial Statem ents 

Th is M D&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the Bossier Par ish School Board's bas ic finan cial 

statements. The Bossier Parish School Board's basic f'man cial statements comprise three components: (1) 
government-wide financial statements, (2) fun d finan cial statements, an d (3) notes to the finan cial statements. 
Th is report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic finan cial statements 
th emselves. 

Governm ent-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statem ents are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overv iew of the Bossier Parish School Board's finan ces, in a m an ner sim ilar to a private- 
sector business. 

~ The Statement of Net Assets presents inform ation on all of the Bossier Par ish School Board's assets and 
liabilities, with the difference between th e tw o reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases 
in net assets may serve as a usefu l indicator of whether the finan cial position of the Bossier Parish 
School Board is improving or deteriorating. 

~ Th e Statement of Activities presents information showing how the School Board's net assets changed 
during the most recent fiscal year . All changes in net assets are reported as soon as th e underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the tim ing of related cash flows. Th us, revenues and 
expenses are reported in th is statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in fu tu re fiscal 

periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
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Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 

resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Bossier Parish School Board, like 
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance- 
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Bossier Parish School Board can be divided into two 
categories: govern mental fu nds and fiduciary funds. 

~ Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide f'man cial statements, govern mental fund financial statements focus on near-terna 
inflows an d outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources at the end of 
the fiscal year. Such inform ation m ay be usefu l in evaluating the Bossier Parish School Board near-term 
financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governm ental funds is narrower th an that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare th e inform ation presented for governmental funds with similar 
inform ation presented for govern mental activities in the governm ent-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Bossier Par ish School Board's near-term  
finan cing decisions, Both th e governm ental fu nds balance sheet and th e govem mental fu nds statement 
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fu nd balan ces provides a reconciliation to facilitate this 
compar ison betw een govern mental funds an d governm ental activities. 

The Bossier Parish School Board maintains 15 individual governm ental funds. Inform ation is presented 
separately in the governmental fu nds balance sheet and in th e governm ental fu nds statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balan ces for the General Fund, Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund, 
Debt Service Fund and Bossier Educational Excellence Perm an ent Fund, all of which ar e considered to 

be major funds. Data for the other 11 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated 
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the 
form  of combining statements an d budget to actual comparison schedules elsewhere in this report. 
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The Bossier Parish School Board adopts an  an nual appropriated budget for its General Fund, certain 

Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, certain Capital Projects Funds and Permanent Fund. 
Budgetary comparison statements have been provided to demonstrate complian ce with these budgets. 

~ Proprietary funds. The School Board maintains one type of proprietary fund. lnternal Service funds are 
an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs intern ally among the School Board's various 
functions. The School Board uses an internal service fund to account for the accumulation of resources 
for an d the payment of employee health insurance by the School Board's risk man agement progr am . 

Because th is serv ice predom inantly benefits governmental rather than  business-type functions, it has 
been included with governmental activities in th e govern ment-wide finan cial statements. 

~ Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of patties outside 
the Bossier Parish School Board. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in th e govern ment-wide finan cial 
statement because the resource s of those funds are not available to support the Bossier Par ish School 
Board's own programs. The School Board maintains one fiduciary fund named the School Activity 
Agency Fun d. 

Notes to the basic financial statements. Th e notes provide additional inform ation that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in th e government-wide and fu nd finan cial statements. 

Other inform ation. In addition to th e bas ic finan cial statements an d accompanying notes, th is report also 
presents certain required supplem entary inform ation concerning the School Board's compliance with budgets for 
its major funds. Th e combining statements for non-major governmental funds are presented immediately 
following th e required supplementary information. 

Financial A nalysis of G overnm ent-w ide Activities 

As noted ear lier, net assets m ay serve over time as a useful indicator of a govern ment's finan cial position. In the 
cas e of the Bossier Parish School Board, as sets exceed liabilities by $47,018,689 at the close of the most recent 
fiscal year . 
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The largest portion of the Bossier Parish School Board's net assets totaling more than $35 million (74.5%) 
reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. lan d, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt 
used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The School Board uses these capital assets to provide 
educational services to children and adults; consequently, these assets ar e not available for future spending. 
Although the Bossier Parish School Board's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it 
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the 
capital assets th em selves can not be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Bossier Parish School Board's Net Assets 

Current and other assets 

Restricted assets 

Capital assets 

Total as sets 

Current and other liabilities 

Long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

To~al net assets 

June 30. 2002 

27,598,625 

9,536,164 

54.815.047 

91.949.836 

14,130,057 

30.801.090 

44.931.147 

35,383,175 

14,058,525 

(2,423,011) 
$ 47,~lg,699 

Restricted net assets of $14,058,525 are reported separately to show the legal constraints for the payment of 
outstanding long-term debt obligations and to limit th e School Board from using these fu nds for day-to-day 
operations. Debt Service Funds account for $4,662,410 of that total. The remaining balan ce are monies restricted 
for instructional enhancement. Gaming receipts are collected from area riverboats an d a horse racing facility. 
State law requires the gam ing receipts be held in perpetuity, however, the investment earnings may be spent each 
year for purposes of instructional enhancement. As of June 30, 2002, th e perm anently restricted portion was 
$9,189,186, an d the temporarily restricted balance, which represents unspent investment earnings, was 
$206,929. 

The remaining negative balance of unrestricted net assets of $2,423,011 will be eliminated by increasing cash 
and investm ent as set reserves. 

Governmental activities increased the Bossier Parish School Board's net assets by $4,017,775, which was a 
9.3% growth in th e net assets. Key elements of this increase are as follows: 
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Bossier Parish School Board's Changes in Net Assets 

Year ended 
June 30. 2002 

Revenues: 

Program revenues 
Charges for services 

State gr ants and entitlements 

Federal gr ants 

General revenues: 

Ad valorem taxes 

Sales taxes 

M inimum Foundation Progr am 

BEEF (Gaming Revenues) 
Interest on investm ents 

Other general revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 

Instruction 

Support services: 

Student serv ices 

Instructional staff support 
General adm inistration 

School administration 

Business services 
Plan t services, including unallocated depreciation 

Student transportation services 

Food services 

Central services 

Community services 
Debt serv ice - interest on long-term obligations 

Total expenses 

Increase in net assets 

N et assets at beginning of year 

N et assets at end of year 

$ 2,178,708 
2,622,338 

11,514,118 

19,282,172 

22,450,840 

59,409,548 

1,597,929 

550,356 

2,788,037 

122,394,046 

68,404,042 

4,776,472 

7,245,551 

1,864,537 

7,941,275 

1,175,853 

10,609,549 

6,604,772 

7,586,684 

924,265 

200,614 

1,042,657 

118,376,271 

4,017,775 

43,000,914 

$ 47,018,689 
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Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities 
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Revenues by Source - GQvernmental Activities 

•	 Grants and Contributions Not Restricted To Specific Programs: The single largest source of revenue to the 
Bossier Parish School Board for grants and contributions not restricted to a specific program is the State 
Equalization or commonly called the Minimum Foundation Program (MFP). The MFP is a distribution of 
approximately $2.3 billion to 66 public school systems by the State of Louisiana for salaries and general 
operations. The State does not provide money for building schools or retiring debt. The distribution is 
based on a formula adopted by the Louisiana Board of Elementary and Secondary Education and approved 
by the Louisiana Legislature. The chart below lists the actual increases or decreases in MFP funds for the 
past 3 years. 

Fiscal Year 
General 

Fund 

School 
Food Service 

Fund Total MFP Increase 

1999-2000 
2000-2001 
2001-2002 

$ 53,331,873 
55,667,108 
57,730,544 

806,004 
1,251,988 
1,679,004 

54,137,877 
56,919,096 
59,409,548 

2,705,757 
2,781,219 
2,490,452 

5.3% 
5.1% 
4.4% 

In FY 2001-02, the School Board received $59,409,548 or 48.5% of its total revenues from the MFP. These 
revenues are deposited in the General Fund and the School Food Service Fund only. Most of the 
$2,490,452 or 4.4% increase was used for salary increases. 
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Sales and use tax revenues are the second largest source of revenues for the 
Bossier Par ish School Board. A 1.5%  sales tax rate is levied upon the sale and consumption of goods an d 
services within th e par ish. The chart below lists the sales an d use tax revenues for the past 3 years. 

Fiscal Year 

1999-2000 
2000-2001 
2001-2002 

Sales Tax 
Fund Increase 

$ 20,112,687 
22,404,446 
22,450,840 

1,442,870 
2,291,759 

46,394 

7.7% 
11.4%  
0.2%  

All sales and use tax revenues are deposited into the Sales Tax Fund from which it is transferred to fund 
primarily the operations of the School Board. This represents 18.3% of the total revenues received. Sales 
tax revenue received in fiscal 2002 has remained consistent with the amount received in the previous year. 

Ad Valorem  Tax Revenues: Ad valorem tax revenues, also called property tax revenues, are the third 
lar gest source of revenue for the School Board. Ad valorem collections are based upon the number of mills 
(approved annually by the School Board) and the taxable assessed value (established by the Bossier Parish 
Tax Assessor), subject to the limitations approved by the voters and the Louisiana Legislature. The chart 
below lists the ad valorem tax deposits for the past 3 years. 

Fiscal Year 

1999-2000 
2000-2001 
2001-2002 

G eneral 
Fund 

$ 13,453,742 
15,483,297 
17,643,485 

Debt Service 
Fund 

1,635,595 
1,587,628 
1,638,687 

Total Ad 
Valorem  
Tax es 

15,089,337 
17,070,925 
19,282,172 

(789,482) (5.0)% 
1,981,588 13.1%  
2,211,247 13.0% 

In FY 2001-02, the School Board deposited $19,282,172 ofad valorem tax revenues into the General Fund 
and the Debt Serv ice Fund. This represents 15.8% of the total revenues received. Ad valorem tax revenues 
in FY 2001-02 increased in the General Fund as a result of new construction added to the tax roils. 
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Operating Grants an d Contributions: Operating grants and contributions are the third largest source of 
revenues for the School Board. This revenue type is primarily comprised of federal grants with some state 
grants included. These gr ants and contributions ar e specifically restricted to certain program s, an d 
therefore, are netted against th e costs of th ese progr ams to show a ~ue net cost. The chart below shows the 
operating gr ants and contributions by fund source. 

Fiscal Year 

1999-2000 
2000-2001 
2001-2002 

General 
Fund 

$ 4,751,458 
5,163,168 
5,261,590 

Nonm~or 
Speci~ 
Revenue 
Fund Total Increase 

7,795,362 
7,992,084 
8,874,866 

12,546,820 
13,155,252 
14,136,456 

556,227 4.6%  
608,432 4.8%  
981,204 7.5% 

In FY 2001-02, the School Board received $14,136,456 in operating grants an d contributions. The 7.5% 
increase in FY 2001-02 is the result of increased Title I program  funding and increased IDEA fu nding. 
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Program Expenses and Revenues - Governmental Activities 

Expenses are classified by functions/programs. The related revenues are comprised of specific charges for the 
services and operating grants and contributions received to offset the expenses for the specific program. 

Instruction services for fiscal 2002 totaled $68,404,042, 57.8% of total expenditures. The remaining captions 
above are considered support services and relate to those functions that support the instructional services 
provided, such as administration, transportation, food services, and plant services. Support services for fiscal 
2002 totaled $48,728,958, 41.2% of total expenditures. 

The remaining expenditures of $1,243,271, 1.0% of total expenditures consists of interest expense on long-term 
obligations and community services expenditures. 

The program revenues for fiscal 2002 directly related to these expenses totaled $16,315,164 which resulted in 
net program expenses of $102,061,107. These net program expenses are funded by general revenues of the 
School Board. 
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Financial Analysis of Governm ental Funds 

As noted earlier, the Bossier Parish School Board uses fund accounting to ensure an d dem onstrate complian ce 
with finan ce-related legal requirements. 

The focus of th e Bossier Parish School Board's govern mental funds is to provide inform ation on near-term 
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Bossier 
Par ish School Boar d's finan cing requirements. In particular, un reserved fund balan ce may serv e as a useful 
measure of a School Boar d's net resources available for spending at th e end of the fiscal year. 

~ As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Bossier Parish School Board's governmental funds 
reported a combined ending fund balance of $20,353,293, an  increase of $7,063,843 in comparison 
with the prior fiscal year. The majority of this fund balance is comprised of approximately (1) $2.2 
million available for spending within the General Fund, (2) $4.7 million reserved for the payment of 
outstanding bond issues within the Debt Service Fund, an d (3) $9.4 million reserved for instructional 
enhancem ent within the Bossier Educational Excellence Permanent Fund. 

~ The General Fund is th e chief operating fund of the Bossier Parish School Board. At th e end of the 
current fiscal year, unreserved fund balan ce of the General Fund was $2,214,665. Th e total 
(undesignated) is available for spending at the Board's discretion. 

~ The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balan ce of $4,662,410, all of which is reserv ed for the 
payment of debt serv ice. A net increase of $333,344 occurred during the current fiscal year as a result 
of ad valorem tax revenues, dedicated to this fund, exceeding the total of principal and interest 
paym ents for th e year . 

~ Th e Capital Projects Funds have a total fund balance of $2,452,098, all of which is designated for 
specific projects. A net increase of $2,447,072 occurred during the current fiscal year largely due to 
$3.1 million of Qualified Zone Academy Bond (QZAB) funds received. 

G eneral Fund Budgetary H ighlights 

Th e Bossier Parish School Board recognizes the importance of sound fiscal plan ning, as well as th e technical 
relationship of th e finan cial structure to th e teaching of students. Form al budgetary integration is employed as a 
management control device during th e fiscal year . Th e budget policy of th e School Board complies with state 
law, as amended, an d as set forth in Louisian a Revised Statutes Title 39, Chapter 9, Louisiana Local 

Government Budget Act (LSA-R.S. 39:1301 et seq.). 
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The original budget for the School Board was adopted on June 21, 2001, and th e final budget amendment was 
adopted on M ay 16, 2002. Differences between the original budget and the final am ended budget of the General 
Fund is as follows: 

Revenues 

~ Ad valorem taxes were estimated at $14,439,403 when the budget was first submitted to the Board in 
June. The original budget was increased by $2,788,777 as a result of increased collections due to new 
property added to tax rolls. 

~ Sales and use tax revenues were estimated to be stable based on estimates from the Bossier Parish 
Sales and Use Tax Commission. The budget was increased $1,418,605 after collections for the first 8 
months of the fiscal year showed an increase of 6.9% . 

~ State equalization was estimated at $2,964 per student in the original budget. However, when the 
appropriation was received from the State Department of Education in February 2002, the amount had 
risen to $3,121 per student. This was an increase of $157 per student largely due to a $2,060 teacher 
pay raise funded within the state equalization. As a result, the budget was increased by $2,490,637 
when the final appropriation was received. 

Expenditu res 

~ All functional areas of the budget for instruction and support services were increased $6,898,023 
when the Board approved a $1,000 salary increase for the professional staff an d $500 for the support 
staff. Also in April 2002, the Board approved a $800 one-time salary increase for the certified staff 
and a $400 one-time salary increas e for the support staff. Also a $2,060 salary increase for certified 
personnel was funded by the state an d necessitated an increase in budgeted expenditures. 

~ Th e original budget for instruction was further adjusted by $227,618 as a result of increased grant 
expenditures. 

~ The original budget for student tran sportation services was further adjusted by $50,000 as a result of 
increased fu el an d bus maintenan ce cost. 

Net change in Fund Balance 

~ The original budget projected a surplus of $1,292,197 an d was later amended and projected to have a 
surplus of $2,527,356. This $1.2 million change is largely due to increases in the projected revenues 
for ad valorem taxes, sales taxes, an d the increas e in state equaliza tion fu nds. 
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Capital Assets and Debt Adm inistration 

Capital Assets: The Bossier Parish School Board's investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2002 amoun ts to 
$54,815,047 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and 
improvements, furniture and equipment, transportation equipment, and construction in progress. The table below 
shows the value at the end of each fiscal year. 

Bossier Parish School Board's Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation) 

2002 2001 

Land $ 557,469 557,469 
Buildings, buildingimprovements, midland 
improvem ents 

Furnitu re and equipment 
Transportation equipment 

Total 

46,461,415 
5,939,224 
1,856,939 

$ 54,815,047 

Major capital asset events during the fiscal year included the following: 

~ 11 school buses were purchased 

~ Purchased over $1.6 million in textbooks an d librau~ books 

48,647,023 
6,108,379 
1.689.698 

Long-Term Debt: At the end of the current fiscal year, the Bossier Par ish School Board had total bonded debt 
outstanding of $20,606,055. The following table summarizes debt outstanding at June 30, 2002 an d 2001. 

Bo~ierParish School Board's Ou~tanding Debt 

2002 2001 

General obligation bonds 
General obligation notes 
Certificates of indebtedness 
QZAB loan payable 

Total 

$ 15,225,000 
387,428 

1,970,000 
3.023.627 

$ 20,606,055 

Long-term debt issues for FY 2001-02 fiscal year include the following: 

~ Total outstanding debt increased $1,080,233 during the fiscal year 

15,845,000 
475,822 

3,205,000 

~ The Bossier Parish School maintains a bond rating of "A2" from M oody's an d a "A-" from 
Standard & Poor's for its general obligation bonds. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOAR D 
Benton, Louisiana 

M anagement's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2002 

~ Louisiana statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt the Bossier Parish School Board 
may issue to 35% of its total assessed valuation. The current debt lim itation for the Bossier 
Par ish School Board is $171 million, which is higher than the $21 million outstanding at 
June 30, 2001. 

~ During FY 2001-02 the Bossier Parish School Board received loan proceeds of $3,079,620 as 
part of the Qualified Zone Academy Bond Program  through the Louisian a Community 
Development Authority. The loan is interest free with quarterly payments of $55,993. 

For additional inform ation regarding capital assets and long-term debt, see the notes to the basic finan cial 
sta tem ents. 

Econom ic Factors and N ext Year's Budgets and Rates 

The following econom ic factors were considered when the budget for FY 2002-03 was presented to th e Board 

~ Enrollment forecasts prepared by the School Board indicate th at 100 more students will enter 
school in Bossier Par ish next year. Th is will affect th e amount of money th at is received from 
the State of Louisiana. 

~ Inform ation from file Bossier Parish Sales Tax Assessor shows property tax assessm ents will 
remain the same at $490 million. 

Sales an d use tax collections for each of the last two fiscal years were $22 million an d it is 
currently budgeted th at collections will remain stable. 

~ Th e unemploym ent rate in Bossier Par ish is presently at 6.5% . Th is rate has been betw een 3.8% 
and 7.7%  for the pas t four years. 

~ No increases are being projected in the amount of debt that is outstanding. It should be noted 
that decreases in the am ount of outstandin g bonds will occur over th e next three year s when 
principal and interest paym ents will decrease from $3.2 million per year in 2003 to $1.7 million 
per year  in 2005. 

Requests for Inform ation 

This finan cial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Bossier Parish School Board's finances for 
all those with an interest in the School Board's finances. Questions concerning an y of the inform ation provided 
in this report or requests for additional finan cial inform ation should be addressed to Director of Finan ce of the 

Bossier Parish School Board, P.O. Box 2000, Benton, LA 71006, or by calling (318) 549-5000. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCH O OL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Assets 

Statem ent of Net Assets 
Governmental Activities 

June 30, 2002 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 
Inventory 
Prepaid item s 
Bond issuance costs, net of accumulated am ortization 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investm ents 
Receivables 

Capita l assets: 
Land 
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Salaries payable 
Payable from  restricted assets - accoun ts payable 
Interest payable - bonds and certificates of indebtedness 

Long-term liabilities: 
Due with in one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total liabilities 

N et Assets 

Invested in capita l assets~ net of related debt 
Restricted for debt service 
Restricted for instructional enhan cement: 
Expendable 
N onexpendable 

Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

See accom pan ying notes to basic finan cial statements. 

23,334,555 
3,893,740 
129,212 
151,861 
89,257 

874,037 
8,424,375 
237,752 

557,469 
54,257,578 

91.949.836 

4,147,252 
9,537,363 
140,049 
305,393 

5,664,945 
25,136,145 

44.931.147 

35,383,175 
4,662,410 

206,929 
9,189,186 
(2A23,011) 

$ 47,018,689 



Functions/programs: 
Current: 
Instruction 
Support services: 
Student services 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
School administration 
Business services 

Plant serv ices, including 
unallocated depreciation 

Student transportation services 
Food serv ice s 
Central services 

Community services 
Debt service - interest on long-term 
obligations, unallocated 

BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Statem ent of Activities 
Govern m ental Activities 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 

68,404,042 

4,776,472 
7,245,551 
1,864,537 

7,941,275 
1,175,853 

Program revenues 

Charges for 
services 

10,609,549 
6,604,772 
7,586,684 2,178,708 
924,265 
200,614 

Operating 
grants and 
contributions 

Net (expense) 
revenue and 

changesin 

netassets 

8,149,194 (60,254,848) 

634,316 
1,578,154 
247,815 

41,624 

27,448 
142,491 

3,315,414 

(4,142,156) 
(5,66L397) 
(1,616,722) 
(7,941,275) 
(1,134,229) 

(10,582,101) 
(6,462,281) 
(2,092,562) 
(924,265) 
(200,614) 

Total governmental 
activities $ 118,376,271 2,178,708 14,136,456 

. (102,061,107) 
General revenues: 
Taxes: 
Ad valorem taxes levied for general purposes 
Ad valorem taxes levied for debl service purposes 
Ad valorem taxes levied for maintenan ce an d operation 
Ad valorem taxes levied for salaries arid benefits 
Sales taxes levied for maintenan ce and operation of air conditioning 
systems and an y other legal purpose 

Sales taxes levied for salaries, benefits, an d general purposes 
State revenue sharing 

Grants and contributions not restricted  to specific programs: 
M inimum Foundation Program 

BEEF (Gaming Revenues) 
Interest and investment earnings 
Other 

Total general revenues 

Change in net assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end of year 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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1,490,359 
1,673~082 

3,393,911 
12,724,820 

7,483,613 
14,967,227 
562,145 

59,409,548 
1,597,929 
550,356 

2,225,892 

10~078,882 

4,017,775 

43,000,914 

__  
47~018,689 



Assets 

Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents - 

restricted 

Investments 

Receivables 

Interfund receivables 

Inventories 

Prepaids 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Salaries payable 

Interfund payable 

Total liabilities 

BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOAR D 
Benton, Louisiana 

Governm ental Funds 
Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2002 

General 

Fund 

1,619,889 

5,129,689 

Sales Tax 

Special 

Revenue 

Fund 

1,906,905 

1,924,177 

Debt 

Service 

Fund 

Bossier 

Education 

ExceHence 

Permanent 

Fund 

874,037 

8,424,375 

237.752 

Other 

Governmental 

Funds Totals 

4,844,376 23,269,238 

349,659 

638,090 

129,212 

$ 18,757,011 3,831,082 4,662,410 9,536,164 5,961,337 42,748,004 

$ 3,259,392 110,743 
8,313,766 

Fund balances: 

Reserved for encumbrances 

Reserved for debt service 

Reserved for inventory 
Reserved for instructional 

enhancement 

Reserved for prepaid items 

Unreserved : 
Designated for capital 

projects in nonmajor 
capital projects funds 

Undesignated 

Undesign ated , reporfed in nonmajor 
special revenue funds 

Total fund balances 

49,672 

51,86 

4,662,410 

140,049 584,939 4,095,123 
--  1,223,597 9,537,363 

3r267 1,370,964 8362,225 

143,316 3,179,500 22,394,711 

129,212 

1,149,672 

4,662,410 

129,212 

9,392,848 

151,86I 

2,452,098 2~52,098 
--  2,214,665 

200,527 200,527 

Total liabilities 
and fund balances $ 18,757,011 3~831,082 4,662,410 9,536,164 5,961,337 42,748,004 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 



BO SSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governm enlal Funds 
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets 

June 30, 2002 

Total fund balances - governm ental funds at Jun e 30, 2002 

The cost of capital assets (land, buildings, furniture 
and equipment) purchased or constructed is reported 
as an  expenditur e in governmental funds. The statement 
of net as sets includes those capital assets am ong the assets 
of the School Board as a whole. Th e cost of those capital 
assets allocated over their estimated useful lives (as 
depreciation expense) to the various programs is reported 
as governm enta l activities in the statem ent of activities. 
Because depreciation expense does not affect fman cial 
resour ces, it is not reported in governm enta l fu nds. 

Cost of capita l assets 
Accum ulated depreciation 

O~ er as ~  usgd h  goveram er,~[ a~i'~ itles if, at are n~  fmar, eiai res~ ree~ 
and th erefore are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Bond issuance costs 
Am ortization 

Long term liabilities applicable to th e School Board's 
governm ental activities are not due and payable in the 
current period and accordingly are not reported as fund 
liabilities. All liabilities --  both current an d long term 
are reported in th e statem ent of net as sets. 

Balan ces at June 30, 2002 are: 
Long-term liabilities: 

Com pensated absences payable 

Claim s and judgments 
General bonded debt 
General obligation notes 
Certificates of indebtedness 
QZAB loan  payable 
Capital leas e payable 

Interest payable 

To include governm ental activities of intem al service fund 

Net assets at Jan e 30, 2002 

See accom panyin g notes to basic fm ancial statem ents. 

147,681,523 

20,353,293 

54,815,047 

123,243 

(33,986) 89,257 

(6,305,060) 
(10,000) 

(15,225,000) 
(387,428) 

(1,970,000) 
(3,023,627) 
(1,205,279) 
(305~393) (28,431,787) 

192r879 

47~018~689 



BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana
 

Governmental Funds
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2002
 

Bossier 
Sales Tax Education 

Special Debt Excellence Other 

General Revenue Service Permanent Governmental 
Fund Fnnd Fund Fund Fnnds Totals 

Revenues: 
Local sources: 

Taxes: 
Ad valorem $ 17,643,485 1,638,687 19,282,172 

Sales and use 22,450,840 22,450,840 
Interest earnings 220,751 84 101,458 207,629 20,434 550,356 
Food services 2,178,708 2,178,708 
Other 2,225,892 1,597,929 3,823,821 

State sources: 
State equalization 57,730,544 1,679,004 59,409,548 
Grants and other 3,057,640 96,161 30,682 3,184,483 

Federal and other sources 2,669,934 8,844,184 11,514,118 

Total revenues 83,548,246 22,450,924 1,836,306 1,805,558 12,753,012 122,394,046 

Expenditures: 

Current: 
Instruction 63,793,395 485,987 2,809,737 67,089,119 
Support services: 

Student services 4,097,699 634,316 4,732,015 

Instructional staff support 5,282,682 1,648,351 6,931,033 

General administration 1,559,618 220,985 257,225 2,037,828 

School administration 7,780,859 7,780,859 

Business services 1,041,012 800 43,131 1,084,943 
Plant services 9,706,866 667,020 10,373,886 
Student transportation 

services 6,111,879 142,867 6,254,746 

Food services 7,442,960 7,442,960 

Central services 868,203 868,203 

Community services 200,614 200,614 

Debt service: 
Principal retirement 4,827,532 620,000 5,447,532 
Interest 283,923 882,162 1,166,085 

Total expenditures 105,554,282 220,985 1,502,962 485,987 13,645,607 121,409,823 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (22,006,036) 22,229,939 333,344 1,319,571 (892,595) 984,223 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from loan 3,079,620 3,079,620 

Proceeds from revenue 
anticipation notes 3,000,000 3,000,000 

Transfers in 22,065,718 7,769,896 29,835,614 

Transfers out (113,432) (22,229,939) (7,492,243) (29,835,614) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 24,952,286 (22,229,939) 3,357,273 6,079,620 

Net change in fund balances 2,946,250 333,344 1,319,571 2,464,678 7,063,843 

Fund balances at beginning of year 569,948 4,329,066 8,073,277 317,159 13,289,450 

Fund balances at end of year $ 3,516,198 4,662,410 9,392,848 2,781,837 20,353,293 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Govern m ental Funds 
Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 

Total net change in fire d balances - governm ental funds 

Am ounts reported for governm ental activities in the 
statement of activities are different because: 

Capital outlays are reported in governm ental funds as 
expenditures. However, in the statem ent of activities, 
th e cost of those as sets is allocated over their 
estim ated usefu l lives as depreciation expense. This 
is th e am ount by which depreciation exceeds capital 
outlays in the period: 

Capital outlay additions 
Depreciation expense 

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the 
govenunental funds, but the repaym ent reduces long- 
term liabilities in th e statem ent of net as sets. 

Proceeds from revenue anticipation notes 

Proceeds from QZAB loan 

Amortization of bond issuan ce cost 

In th e statem ent of activities, certain operating expenses- 

compensated absences (vacations and sick leave)- 
are m eas ured by amounts earned during th e year. In the 
governm ental funds, however, expenditures for these 
items are m eas ured by th e amount of financial resources 
used (essentially, the amounts actually paid). Th is year, 
vacation an d sick tim e earned exceeded th e amounts 
used by $454,371. 

Interest on long-term  debt in the statem ent of activities 
differs from the am ount reported in th e governmental funds 
fu nds because interest is recognized as an  expenditure 
in th e funds when it is due, and thus requires the use of 
current finan cial resour ces. In the statement of activities, 
however, interest expense is recognized as th e interest 
accrues, regardless of when it is due. 

To include governm ental activities of internal service fund 

Chan ge in net as sets of governm ental activities 

See accompan ying notes to basic financial statements. 
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7,063,843 

2,837,962 

(5,025,484) (2,187,522) 

5,447,532 

(3,000,000) 

(3,079,620) 

(6,307) 

(454,371) 

41,341 

192,879 

4.017.775 



Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from other funds 

Total assets 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Claims payable 
Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

Unrestricted 

BO SSIER PARISH SCH O OL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Balance Sheet 
Proprietary Fund 

June 30, 2002 

A ssets 

Liabilities 

N et Assets 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accom pan ying notes to basic financial statem ents. 

Governm entM 
Act~ ies- 

lnternalService 
Fund 

$ 65,317 
2,995,436 

3.060.753 

960,981 
1,905,893 

/92,879 

192,879 

3,060,753 



BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets 
Proprietary Fund 

Year ended June 30, 2002 

Operating revenues - prem ium s 

Operating expenses 
Claim s 
Consulting services 

Total operating expenses 

Operating incom e 

Change in net assets 

Total net assets, beginning 

Total net assets, ending 

See accom panying notes to basic financial statements. 
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G overnm ental 
A ctivities - 

Internal Service 
Fund 

$ 17.406.441 

17,197,562 
16,000 

17,213,562 

192,879 

192,879 

$ 192,879 



BOSSIER PARISH  SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund 

Year ended June 30, 2002 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Prem ium s 
Claims paid 
Other paym ents 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Net increase in cash and cas h equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 

Cash an d cash equivalents end of the year 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cas h 
provided by operating activities: 
Operating incom e 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net 
cash provided by operating activities: 
Chan ge in assets and liabilities: 
Receivables, net 
Accounts payable 
Claim s payable 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

See accom panying notes to basic financial statements 

G overnm ental 
Activities - 

Internal Service 
Fund 

$ 16,762,387 
(17,047,361) 
(349,392) 
64.418 

64,418 

899 

$ 65,317 

192,879 

(644,054) 
365,392 
150,201 

$ 64.418 



Cash 

Total assets 

Accounts payable 
Deposits due others 

Tota l liabilities 

BOSSIER PARISH  SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 
Agency Fund 

June 30, 2002 

Asse s 

Liabilities 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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1.718.723 

1.718.723 

29,671 
1,689,052 

1.718.723 



BO SSIER PARISH  SCH O OL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2002 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The Bossier Parish School Board (School Board) was created by Louisiana Revised Statute (LSA-R.S.) 
17:51 to provide public education for the children within Bossier Parish. The School Board is authorized 
by LSA-R.S. 17:81 to establish policies and regulations for its own government consistent with the laws of 
the state of Louisiana and th e regulations of the Louisiana Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. 
The School Board is comprised of twelve members who are elected from twelve districts for concurrent 
term s of four year s. 

The School Board operates 35 schools within the par ish with a total enrollment of 18,756 pupils. In 

conjunction with the regular education programs, some of these schools offer special education and/or 
adult education program s. In  addition, th e School Board provides tran sportation and school food services 
for the students. 

The basic criterion established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) for 
determ ining wheth er a governmental department, agency, institution, comm ission, public auth ority, 
or oth er govern mental organ ization should be included in a primary governmental unit's reporting 
entity for general purpose financial statements is finan cial accountability. Financial accoun tability 
includes the appointment of a voting majority of the organ ization's governing body and either the 
ability of the prim ary governm ent to impose its w ill on the organization or if th ere is a fman cial 
benefit/burden relationship. In  addition, an organ iza tion which is fiscally dependent on the primary  
govern ment should be included in its reporting entity. 

Th e financial statements present the Bossier Parish School Board (the primary government). Based 
on the criteria, there are no component units included in the School Board's reporting entity . 

(b) Basis of Presentation 
Governm ent-wide and Fund Financial Statem ents 

During the current year, th e School Board adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic 

Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local 
Governments. See note 15 for additional inform ation. 

The government-wide financial statements ("GW FS") (i.e., the statement of net assets and the 
statement of activities) report inform ation on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the School Board. 
For th e most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 

The statement of net assets presents information on all of th e School Board's assets an d liabilities, 
with th e difference betw een the tw o reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net 
assets may serv e as a useful indicator of whether th e financial position of the School Board is 
improving or deteriorating. 

30 (Continued) 



BO SSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2002 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
or segment are offset by progr am revenues. Direct expenses are th ose th at ar e clearly identifiable 
with a specific function or segm ent. Indirect expenses of other functions are not allocated to those 
functions but are reported separately in the statement of activities. Depreciation expense which can 
be specifically identified by function is included in th e direct expense of each function. Some 
depreciation remains unallocated and is included in plant services. Interest on general long-term 
debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the statement of activities. 

Program  revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly 
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants 
and contributions that are restricted to meeting th e operational requirements of a particular function 
or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included am ong progr am  revenues are reported 
instead as general revenues. 

Separate fund financial statements ("FFS") are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds 
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the GW FS. Major individual 
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the FFS. There are no major proprietary 
funds. 

Th e accounts of the School Board are organized on the basis of fu nds, each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accoun ted for w ith a separate set of self- 
balancing accounts th at comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures. The 
various funds are summ arized by type in the financial statements. The following fu nd types are used 
by th e School Board: 

G overnm ental Funds 

Governm ental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the School Board are 
financed. Th e acquisition, use, and balances of the School Board's expendable finan cial resources 
and th e related liabilities are accounted for through governmental funds. The School Board reports 

the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - The General Fun d is the general operating fund of the School Board. It is used to 
account for all finan cial resources except those required to be accounted for in an other fund. 

Sales Tax Fund Special Revenue Fun d- The Sales Tax  Fund is used to account for the collection of 
sales tax in Bossier Parish. The monies are then tran sferred to the appropriate fu nd for 
expenditures. 

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources 
for, an d the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. The Debt 
Service Fund receives a dedicated portion of ad valorem taxes paid to the School Board. 

(Continued) 



BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

N otes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2002 

Bossier Education Excellence Permanent Fund - This fund is used to report resources that are 
legally restricted to the extent that only earn ings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that 
support th e School Board's programs. The BEEF fund was established to account for the School 
Board's share of gaming receipts. These gaming monies are legally restricted an d may not be spent. 
Th e interest earnings, however, may be expended for purposes of instructional enhancement. 

Additionally the School Board reports the following fu nd types 

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds ar e used to account for the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources th at are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be 
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. 

Proprietary Funds 

The Proprietary Fund is used to account for the School Board's ongoing organ izations and activities 
which are sim ilar to those often found in th e private sector. 

The School Board applies all applicable GASB pronouncements in accounting and reporting for its 
proprietary operations as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 
1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with  or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial 
Accoun ting Standards Board Statements an d Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board opinions, 
an d Accoun ting Research Bulletins. 

lnternal Service Fund - The Internal Service Fund is the only proprietary fun d an d is used to 
accoun t for th e accumulation of resources for and the payment of employee health insuran ce by the 
School Board's risk managem ent progr am . Because this service predominantly benefits 
governmental rather than  business-B e functions, this fund has been included within governmental 
activities in the government-wide finan cial statements. 

Fiduciary  Funds 

Fiduciary funds account for as sets held on behalf of outside parties, including oth er governments, or 
on behalf of oth er funds within the School Board. Fiduciary funds include: 

School Activity Agency Fund- The School Activity Agency Fund is used to account for assets held 
by the School Board as an agent for other parties. The School Activity Agency Fund is custodial in 
nature (assets equal liabilities) and does not involve measurement of results of operations. Th e fund 
accounts for monies collected by pupils an d school personnel for school or school-related purposes. 

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost for assets where actual 
histo rical cost is not available and depreciated over their estimated usefu l lives. Donated capital 
assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. The School Board maintains 
a threshold level for capitalization of $1,000 for all fixed assets. 

(Continued) 



BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Notes to Basic Finan cial Statem ents 

June 30, 2002 

Capital assets are reported in the GW FS, but not reported in the FFS 

Estimated useful life is management's estimate of how long the asset is expected to meet service 
demands. Capital assets have not been assigned a salvage value because man agement feels that the 
salvage value is immaterial. Straight-line depreciation is calculated based on the following estimated 
useful lives: 

Buildings 
Land improvements 
Building improvem ents 
Furniture an d equipment 
Vehicles 

25-50 years 
10-25 years 
10- 30 year s 
5-20 year s 

8 year s 

The School Board does not possess any material amounts of infrastructure capital assets, such as 
roads and bridges. 

(d) Long-Term Liabilities 
In th e GW FS, and proprietary fund types in the FFS, long-term debt and other long-term obligations 
are reported as  liabilities in the statement of net assets. Bond issuance  costs are reported as deferred 
charges and amortized over the term  of the related debt. 

In th e FFS, governm ental fund types recognize  bond issuan ce cost during the current period. The 
face am ount of debt issued is reported as oth er financing sources. Issuan ce costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

(e) Basis of Accounting/M easurement Focus 

G overnm ent-W ide Financial Statem ents 

The statement of net assets an d the statement of activities were prepared using the econom ic 
resources m easurem ent focus an d th e accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, 
assets, an d liabilities resulting from exchange and exchan ge-like transactions are recognized when 
th e exchange takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, an d liabilities resulting from 
non-exchan ge tran sactions are recognize d in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement 

No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Transactions, which was adopted in 
the previous fiscal year. 

Fund Financial Statem ents 

Governm ental Funds 

The accounting and financial reporting treatm ent applied to a fund is determ ined by its measurement 
focus. All governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement 
focus. W ith this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are 

included on the balan ce sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (revenues and 
other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures an d other financing uses) in net current assets. 

(Continued) 



BO SSIER PARISH  SCH O O L BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2002 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and 
reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to th e tim ing of th e measurements 
made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. The governmental funds (General Fun d, 
Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, Capital Projects Funds, and Perman ent Fund) are 
maintained on th e modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of 
accoun ting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accru al, i.e., both measurable and available. 
M easurable means the amount of the transaction can  be determined. Available means collectible 
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. 
For th is purpose, the School Board considers revenues to be available if they are collected w ithin 60 
days after th e end of the current fiscal period. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year  
for which they are levied. 

Revenues 

Revenues which are susceptible to accru al ar e ad valorem taxes, sales taxes, and investm ent income. 
Food services an d m iscellan eous other revenues ar e recorded as revenues when earned. For 
intergoveru m enta l revenues, th e legal an d contractu al requirem ents of th e numerous in dividual 
program s ar e used as  guidan ce. Grants an d sim ilar item s ar e recogn ized as revenues as soon as  all 
eligibility requirements im posed by the provider have been met. In reimbursement-type programs, 

monies must be expended on the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to the 
School Board; th erefore, revenues are recogn ized based upon the expenditu res recorded. In oth er 
program s in which monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure an d ar e usually 
revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed complian ce requirements, the resour ces are 
reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or ear lier if the susceptible to accru al criteria are met. 

Expenditu res are generally recogn ized under the modified accrual basis of accoun ting when th e 
related fund liability is incurred. An exception to th is general rule is th e principal and interest on 
general long-term  debt which is recogn ized when due. As of June 30, 2002, all instructional related 
salaries for July and August have been accru ed because th e salar ies have been earned but not paid. 

Compensated absences are recognized as expenditures when the benefit matured. Only the matu red 
portion of the liability for compensated absences, which includes salary and salary-related 
payments, is reported in the fund. 

Proprietary Funds 

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus an d use 
the accrual basis of accoun ting. Under this meth od, revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses ar e recorded at th e time th e liabilities are incurred. W ith this measurement focus, all 
assets an d all liabilities associated with th e operation of these funds ar e included on the balance 
sheet. 



BOSSIER PARISH  SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2002 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating item s. Operating 
revenues an d expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the proprietary 
fu nd's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the School Board's internal 
service funds are prem ium s. Operating expenses for the internal service funds include the cost of 
sales and serv ices an d administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Transfers between fun ds that are not expected to be repaid and long-term debt proceeds are 

accounted for as other finan cing sources (uses). These other financing sources (uses) are recognized 
at the time the underlying events occur. 

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Outstanding encum brances (e.g., 
purchase orders, contracts) lapse at year end. To the extent the School Board intends to honor the 
purchase orders and comm itments, they are reported as reservations of fund balan ces. Authorization 
for th e eventual expenditure will be included in the following year 's budget appropriations. 

(g) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, an d time deposit 
accounts. Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits an d th ose investm ents with original 
m aturities of ninety days or less. Under state law, the School Board may deposit fun ds in deman d 
deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits with state 
banks organized under Louisian a law and national ban ks having their principal offices in Louisiana. 

Investments are lim ited by LSA-R.S. 33:2955 and the School Board's investment policy. If th e 
original m aturities of investments exceed 90 days, they are classified as investments; however, if th e 
original maturities are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash equivalents. 

The investm ents are reflected at fair value except for investments that have a remaining matu rity at 
tim e of purchase of one year or less; th ese are reported at cost. 

Under state law, the School Board may invest in direct United States Treasury obligations, 

indebtedness issued or gu aranteed by federal governmental agencies (provided such obligations are 
backed by the full faith an d credit of the U.S. government), indebtedness issued or guaran teed by 
federally sponsored U.S. government agencies, an d may deposit its funds in demand deposits, 
interest-bearing demand deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits with state banks 
organized under Louisiana law an d national banks having th eir principal offices in Louisiana or 
mutual or trust fund institutions registered with th e Securities and Exchan ge Commission. 
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(i) Short-Term Interfund Receivables~Payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur betw een individual funds for services 
rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as due from other fu nds or due to other 
funds on the fund finan cial statements balance sheet. 

0") Elimination and Reclassifications 

In the process of aggregating data for the statement of net assets and the statement of activities, 
som e amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in th e fu nds were elim inated or 
reclas sified. Interfund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing up" 
effect on assets and liabilities within th e governm ental activities column. 

(k) Inventories 

Inventory of th e School Food Service special revenue fu nd consists of supplies and food purchased 
by the School Board. All comm odities received through both the cash in lieu of commodities 
progr am  an d th e food distribution program are received and consumed in th e current year . 

Food is accounted for on th e consum ption method. All pur chased inventory  item s are valued at cost 
(first-in, first-out), and commodities are assigned values based on information provided by the 
United States Department of Agriculture. Inventories are equally offset by a fund balan ce reserve 
which indicates that these do not constitute "available spendable resources", even th ough they are a 
component of tota l assets. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded 
as prepaid items. 

(m) Vacation, Sick Leave, and Sabbatical Leave 

All tw elve-month School Board employees earn from ten to tw enty days of vacation leave each year 
depending upon length of service. Vacation leave may be accumulated up to one hundred an d fifty 
percent of their annual allotment carried forward to the next calendar year . Upon term ination, 
employees may be paid for all unused vacation earned through June 30, 2002 an d up to th irty days 
of unused vacation leave earned subsequent to June 30, 2002. N ine-month employees earn tw o 
work days of personal leave per academic year, which is non-cum ulative. 

All School Board employees earn from ten to th irteen days of sick leave each year , depending upon 
the length of serv ice. Sick leave may be accum ulated without limitation. Upon retirement or death, 
a maximum of tw enty-five days accumulated sick leave may be paid to the employee or the 
employee's estate at the employee's current rate of pay. Under the Louisian a Teachers' Retirement 
System, the total accumulated sick leave, including the twenty-five days paid, is used in the 
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retirement benefit computation as earned service for leave earned prior to July 1, 1988. For sick 
leave earned after July 1, 1988, under the Louisiana Teachers' Retirement System and for sick leave 
earned under the Louisian a School Employees' Retirement System, all unpaid sick leave, which 
excludes the twenty-five days paid, is used in the retirem ent benefit computation as earned service. 

Sabbatical leave may be granted for medical reasons and for professional and cultural improvement . 

Any employee with a teaching certificate is entitled, subject to approval by the School Board, to one 
semester of sabbatical leave after three year s of continuous serv ice or tw o semesters of sabbatical 
leave after six or more years of continuous serv ice. 

Accruals for compensated absences include both salary and salary-related benefits 

Sabbatical leave benefits are recorded as expenditu res in the period paid. 

In the FFS, the matured liability for compensated absences, which includes salary and salary-related 
payments, is reported in the fund. The total liability is reported in the GW FS. 

(n) Sales Tax 

The School Board receives sales tax revenue from the following two sales taxes 

(a) The voters of Bossier Parish approved on April 15, 1969, a one-cent parish-wide sales tax to be 
used to supplement salaries and benefits of teachers of Bossier Parish and other School Board 
employees an d for th e operation of public schools in Bossier Par ish. 

(b) Th e voters of Bossier Parish approved on September 16, 1978, a one-half of one percent (%%) 
par ish-wide sales tax to be used for the retirement of the School Board's sales tax bonds, th e 
maintenan ce and upkeep of the school system 's air conditioners and any other lawful purpose 
of th e school system . 

(o) Pension Plans 
The School Board participates in two pension plan s administered by oth er govern mental entities 

which cover substantially all employees who meet certain length of service requirements (see note 6 
for details of these plans). 

For the govern ment-wide statement of net assets, net assets are reported as restricted when 
constraints placed on net asset use are eith er: 

Externally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), gran tors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other govern ments; 

~ Imposed by law th rough constitutional provisions or enabling legislation 
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Use of the term "reserve" in describing governmental fund "Fund Balances" indicates that a portion 
of the fund balance is not available to appropriate for expenditure or is legally segregated for a 
specific future use. The nature and purpose of these reserves are explained as follows: 

Encum brances 

Encumbrances outstanding at year end represent the estim ated am ount the School Boar d intends to 
honor as a commitment regardless of the lapse in the appropriation. 

Inventory 

This amount represents the portion of fund balan ce relating to purchased invent ory on hand which is 
therefore unavailable to be expended for other purp oses. A reserve is not established for donated 
inventory . 

Prepaid Item s 

This am ount represents the portion of fund balan ce relating to expenditures that will benefit future 
periods. 

Debt Service 

This amount represents the portion of fund balan ce that has been reserved in the Debt Service Fund 
for future payment of principal an d interest on bonded debt. 

Instructional Enhancem ent 

Th is amount represents the portion of fu nd balance th at has been reserv ed in th e Bossier Educational 

Excellence Fund (permanent fund). 

(r) Designations 

Use of th e term  "designated" in describing govern mental fund "Fund Balances" indicates that a 
portion of the fimd balance has been segr egated to indicate tentative plan s for futu re finan cial 

resource use. Designated fund balances may be changed an d are subject to subsequent authorization 
before expenditures can  be made. Th e natu re and purpose of these designations are explained as 
follows: 

Designated for Capital Projects 

This am ount has been accumulated from bond and loan  proceeds to fund the acquisition an d/or 
construction of capital assets. 
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(s) Grants and Entitlements From Other Governmental Agencies 

Federal and state govern mental agencies represent an important source of supplementary funding to 
finan ce educational programs and other activities beneficial to parish schools. These fun ds

, 

primarily in the form of gran ts, are recorded in the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. A 
gran t receivable is recorded when all applicable eligibility requirements have been met. Th e gran ts 
normally specify the purpose for which th e funds may be used an d are audited annually as mandated 
in OM B Circular A-133. 

(t) Capital Leases 

Capital leases are recorded as expenditures and other finan cing sour ces at inception in govern mental 
funds at an  amount equal to the present value of m inimum lease payments. The asset an d related 
liability are recorded in the GW FS. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires man agement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements an d the reported am ounts of revenues, expenditures, expenses, and oth er financing 
sources an d uses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estim ates. 

(2) Cash and Investments 

At June 30, 2002, the carrying amount of the School Board's cash deposits was $11,105,481, an d the bank 
balance was $12,098,608. This difference is due to the outstanding checks at June 30, 2002. Under state 
law, these deposits (or the resulting bank balan ces) must be secured by federal deposit insuran ce or the 
pledge of secur ities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The fair value of the pledged securities plus the 
federal deposit insuran ce must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. 

Of the ban k balance, $985,013 was covered by federal depository insuran ce or by collateral held by the 
School Board's agent in the School Board's nam e and $185,425 was insured by the National Credit Union 
Share Insuran ce Fun d in the School Board's nam e (GASB Category 1). $10,928,170 was collateralized 
with securities held by th e pledging finan cial institution's trust department or agent but not in the School 
Board's name (GASB Category 3). 

Investm ents are categorized into these three categories of credit risk: 

1. Insured or registered, or securities held by the School Board or its agent in the School Board's nam e 

2. Uninsured an d unregistered, with securities held by the counter party's trust departm ent or agent in the 
School Board's name. 

3. Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counter party, or by its trust department or 
agent but not in the School Board's nam e. 
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At year end, the School Board investment balances included the following: 

U. S. Agency obligations 

Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) 
Total investments 
Deposits 
Tota l cash, cash equivalents, and 

investm ents 

Category 1 

8,424,375 
N/A 

Carrying 
am ount and 
fair value 

8,424,375 
14,821,834 
23,246,209 
11.105A 81 

Investnaents in LAM P are not categorized above because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in 
physical or book entry form . LAM P, a local governm ent investm ent pool, is adm inistered by LAM P, Inc., 
a nonprofit corporation organized under th e laws of the State of Louisiana. W hile LAM P is not required to 
be a registered investm ent company under the Investm ent Company Act of 1940, its investment policies 
are sim ilar to those established by Rule 2-a-7, which governs registered money market funds. The LAM P 
portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local governments in Louisiana are 
auth orized to invest. The dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of LAM P assets is restricted to not 
more than 90 days, and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days. The fair value of 
investm ents is determined on a weekly basis to monitor any varian ces between amortized cost an d fair 
value. For purp oses of determ ining participan ts' shares, investments are valued at am ortized cost. LAM P 
is designed to be highly liquid to give participan ts immediate access to their account balances. 

(3) Levied Taxes 

The School Board levies taxes on real and business personal property located within Bossier Par ish's 
boundaries. Property taxes ar e levied by the School Board on property values assessed by the Bossier 
Parish Tax Assessor and approved by the state of Louisiana Tax Commission. 

The Bossier Parish Sheriff's Offi ce bills an d collects property taxes for th e School Board. Collections are 
remitted to the School Board monthly. 

Property Tax Calendar 

Assessment date 
Levy date 
Tax  bills mailed 
Total taxes are due 
Penalties an d interest are added 
Lien date 
Tax sale - 2001 delinquent property 

40 

January 1, 2001 
Not later than June 1, 2001 
On or about November 15,2001 
December 31,2001 
Jan uary 1, 2002 
January 1, 2002 
M ay 2002 
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The School Board is permitted to levy taxes up to 10% of the assessed property valuation for each 
specified purpose or, in the aggregate for all purposes, 35%  of the as sessed valuation for the paym ent of 
principal and interest on long-term debt after approval by the voters of the parish. 

Assessed values are established by the Bossier Parish Tax Assessor each year on a tmiform basis at the 
following ratios of assessed value to fair market value. 

10%  land 
10% residential improvements 
15%  industrial improvements 

15%  m achinery 
15%  comm ercial improvem ents 

25%  public service properties, excluding lan d 

A revaluation of all property is required to be completed no less th an every four years. The last 
revaluation was completed for the roll of January 1, 2000. Total assessed value was $489,789,300 for 
calendar year 2001. Louisian a State law exempts the first $7,500 of assessed value of a taxpayer's 
primary residence from parish property taxes. This homestead exemption was $120,793,260 of the 
assessed value in calendar  year 2001. 

The following is a summary of authorized an d levied (tax rate per $1,000 assessed value) ad valorem 
taxes: 

Parish-wide taxes 

Constitutional 
Special M aintenance an d Operations 
Special Salaries and Related Benefits 
Special Salaries an d Related Benefits 
Bond and Interest 

Date of voter Authorized Levied 
approval millage millage 

Statutory 
October 16, 1993 
October 16, 1993 
April 20, 1996 
April 20, 1996 

4.22 
9.61 
9.61 
26.50 

Variable 

4.22 
9.61 
9.61 
26.50 
4.70 

Expiration 
date 

Statutory 
2003 
2003 
2OO6 
2017 

The difference between authorized an d levied millages are the result of the reassessment of taxable 
property required by Article 7, Section 23 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 
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(4) Capital Assets 

A summary of changes in capital assets is as follows: 

Balance 
July 1, 2001 Additions Retirements 

Balance 
June 30, 2002 

Capital assets not being 
depreciated - land 

$ 
557,469 557,469 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Transportation equipment 

118,966,426 
17,784,435 
7,535,231 

1,950 
2,335,386 

500,626 

118,968,376 
20,119,821 

8,035,857 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 144,286,092 2,837,962 147,124,054 

Less accumulated depreciation 
for: 

Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Transportation equipment 

70,319,403 
11,676,056 
5,845,533 

2,187,558 
2,504,541 

333,385 

72,506,961 
14,180,597 
6,178,918 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 87,840,992 5,025,484 92,866,476 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 56,445,100 (2,187,522) 54,257,578 

Capital assets, net $ 57,002,569 (2,187,522) 54,815,047 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows: 

Instruction $ 3,881,265 

Support services: 
Instructional staff support services 
Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 
School administration 
Pupil support services 
Central services 
General administration 
Noninstructional services - food service operations 

261,867 
89,046 

133,538 
333,885 
109,948 

17,768 
54,179 
16,314 

127,674 

Total depreciation expense $ 5,025,484 
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The receivables of $4,131,492 at June 30, 2002 for the School Board's major and nonmajor funds consist 
of the following: 

Giants: 
Federal 
State 

Sales tax 
Other 

General 
Fund 

$ 290,651 
819.158 

$ 1,619,889 

Sa~s Tax 
Special 
Revenue 
Fund 

Debt 
Service 
Fund 

Bossier 
Education 
Excellence 
Permanent 
Fund 

There were no allowan ces for uncollectible accounts as of June 30, 2002 

(6) Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

Nonmajor 
Funds 

324,964 
19,349 

5,346 

349.659 

Total 
Government- 

wide 

615,615 
838,507 

1,924,177 
753.193 

The School Board provides retirement, death, an d disability benefits to its employees through tw o pension 
plans adm inistered by th e state of Louisiana. These plans are: 

Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana (TRS) 

Participation in the Teachers' Retirement Systems is divided into two plans - the Teachers' Regular Plan 

and the Teachers' Plan A (Teachers' Plan). In general, professional employees (such as teachers an d 
principals) and lunchroom workers are members of these cost-sharing multiple-employer statewide plans. 
Benefit provisions are established in accordan ce with Louisian a state statute. The Teachers' Plan issues a 
publicly available financial report th at includes financial statements an d required supplementary 
inform ation. Th at report may be obtained by writing to the Board of Trustees of the Teachers' Retirement 
System of Louisiana, P. O. Box 94123, Baton Rouge, Louisian a 70804-9123. 

Covered employees are required to contribute 8% of th eir salary to th e Teachers' Regular Plan an d 9.10%  
percent of their salary to the Teachers' Plan  A. Th e School Board was required to contribute 13.1% , 
14.2% , and 15.2% of covered employees' salaries for the years ended June 30, 2002, 2001, and 2000, 
re spectively. 
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The employer and employee contribution obligations are established and may be amended by Louisiana 
state statute. The School Board's contributions for the years ended June 30, 2002, 2001, and 2000 were 
$8,028,764, $7,836,701, and $8,366,786, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental 
Employers, the net pension obligation was determined to be zero. Prior to adoption of GASB 27, the 
School Board did not report a pension liability for the Teachers' Plan. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan 

Effective July 1, 1992, the Teachers' Retirement System adopted a Deferred Retirement Option Plan 
(DROP). Under the DROP, a member is allowed to retire and accumulate hislher retirement benefits in a 
special reserve fund and yet continue employment and draw a salary. Upon termination of employment at 
the end of the specified period, the monthly retirement benefits and the amounts paid into the DROP will 
begin being paid to the retiree. 

Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System (School Employees' Plan): 

Plan Description 

All bus drivers, bus aids, maintenance employees, and custodians are members of this cost-sharing 
multiple-employer statewide plan. Benefit provisions are established in accordance with Louisiana state 
statute. The School Employees' Plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the Board 
of Trustees of the Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System, P.O. Box 44516, Baton Rouge, 
Louisiana 70804-4516. 

Funding Policy 

Covered employees were required to contribute 7.5% of their salary to the School Employees' Plan in 
2002 and 6.35% of their salary for 2001 and 2000. The School Board was required to contribute 6% of 
covered employees' salaries for 2002,2001, and 2000. However, due to the passage of House Bill 2174, 
employer contributions for the years ended June 30,2002,2001, and 2000 were funded from the Employer 
Credit Account. The employer and employee contribution requirements are established and may be 
amended by Louisiana state statute. In accordance with GASB 27, the net pension obligation was 
determined to be zero. Prior to adoption of GASB 27, the School Board did not report a pension liability 
for the School Employees' Plan. 
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(7) Post-Retirement Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits 

In accordance with state statutes, the School Board provides continuing health care and life insurance 
benefits for its retired employees. Substantially all of the School Board's employees become eligible for 
these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the School Board. These benefits for 
retirees an d similar benefits for active employees were provided through a fully-insured program , whose 

monthly premiums are paid jointly by the employees an d the School Board. The School Board recognizes 
the cost of providing these benefits (the Board's portion of premiums) as an  expenditure when the monthly 
prem iums are due. 

The School Board is responsible for 79% of the health insurance premium . Total cost to the School Board 
of health care insuran ce premium s totaled $2,454,504 for 2002, while the employees paid $671,394. At 
June 30, 2002, l, 102 former employees were qualified to receive such benefits. 

For life insuran ce benefits, the School Board is responsible for 56%  of the prem ium s, while the employee 
is responsible for the remaining 44% . The School Board paid a total of $49,987 in life insuran ce 
premiums, while the employees paid $39,011 for 2002. At June 30, 2002, 1,102 former employees were 
qualified to receive such benefits. 

(8) Lease Commitments 

Th e School Board records item s under capital leases as an  asset and an  obligation in the accompanying 
finan cial statements. The equipment under capital lease is comprised of the following: 

Energy equipm ent 

Total 

4.970.640 

The following is a schedule of fu ture minimum  lease payments under capital leases, together with th e 
present value of th e net m inimum  leas e payments, as of June 30, 2002: 

Fiscal yea~ : 
2002-2003 
2003-2004 
2004-2005 
2005-2006 
2006-2007 

Total m inim um lease payments 

Less am ounts representing interest 

Present value of net m inimum lease paym ents 

Energy 
equipm ent 

538,525 
538,525 
224,382 

1,301,432 

96.153 

Capital lease paym ents are funded by general operating revenues an d are paid from the General Fund. 
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(9) Short-Term Obligations 

The follow ing is a summary of the short-term debt activity: 

Revenue anticipation notes $ 

Beginning 
balance Additions Reductions 

3,000,000 3,000,000 

Ending 
balance 

Due within 

one year 

During fiscal 2002, the School Board issued revenue anticipation notes of $3,000,000, which were repaid 
with ad valorem tax receipts in 2002. Interest paid on these notes totaled $50,530. 

(10) Long-Term Obligations 

The following is a summ ary of the long-term obligation activity for the year ended June 30, 2002 

Beginning Ending 
balance Additions Reducaons balance 

Due within 

one year 

General bonded debt $ 15,845,000 --  620,000 15,225,000 665,000 

Ge neral obligation notes 475,822 --  88,394 387,428 88,394 

Certificates of indebtedness 3,205,000 --  1,235.000 1,970,000 1,305,000 

QZAB loan payable --  3,079,620 55,993 3,023,627 223,972 

Claims andjudgments payable 2,I01,995 17,902.971 17,320,270 2,684,696 2,674,696 
Capital leases payable 1,653,424 --  448,145 1,205,279 476,8g3 

Compensated absences 5,850,689 684,900 230,529 6,305,060 231~000 

Gov~nrnental activity Iong-terrn liabilities $ 29,131,930 21,667,491 19,998,331 30,801,090 5,664,945 

In 2002, the School Board received loan proceeds of $3,079,620 as part of the Qualified Zone Academy 
Bond Program through the Louisiana Community Development Authority. QZAB loan proceeds must be 
used for projects linked to instruction in schools where 35% or more of students are eligible for reduced 
lunch prices. The loan is interest free with quarterly payments of $55,993. In 2002, a principal paym ent 
for the Qualified Zone Academy Loan of $55,993 was made from the General Fund. 

For the year ended June 30, 2002, the principal payments of $620,000 plus interest and fiscal charges of 
$882,162 on the bonds were paid from the Debt Service Fund. Accrued compensated absences of 
$230,529 were paid by those funds an d departments with salary costs and are included in payroll costs. 
For the year ended June 30, 2002, the principal payments of $1,323,394 plus interest an d fiscal charges of 
$143,298 on the general obligation notes and certificates of indebtedness were paid from the General 
Fund. 
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Long-term debt at Jun e 30, 2002 is comprised of the following issues 

Bond 
issue 

General obligation bonds: 
Parish-wide- 1996 
Parish-wide- 1997 

General obligation notes; 
Notes payable - EPA 
Notes payable - EPA 

Certificate of indebtedness 
Certificate of indebted ness 
QZAB 

Total 

Date Amount 

9,000,000 
8,000,000 

579,609 
1,011,499 
3,000,000 
3,000,000 
3,000,000 

Remaining 
interest 
rates 

5.00% - 10.00% 
4.50% - 10.00% 

Noninterest 
Noninterest 

4.30% -4.55% 
4.45%  

Noninterest 

Final 
payment 
due 

Interest 
to Principal 

maturity outstanding 

34)1-16 $ 3,525,440 
34)1-I7 3,048,199 

7-01-05 
7-31-08 
24) 14)3 
3-01-04 
11-01-15 

30,713 
87,221 

8,035,000 
7,190,000 

All principal and interest requirements are funded in accordan ce with Louisiana law by the annual ad 
valorem tax levy on taxable property within the parish and through general fund operations. At June 30, 
2002, the School Board has accumulated $4,662,410 in the Debt Service Fund for future debt 
requirements. General obligation bond payments are paid from th e Debt Serv ice Ftmd. General 
obligation notes and certificates of indebtedness are paid from the General Fund. 

The annual requirem ents to am ortize all debt outstanding as of June 30, 2002 are as follows 

Yearending June 30 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008-2012 
2013-2017 

General 
obligation 
bonds 

$ 665,000 
705,000 
750,000 
795,000 
845,000 

5,220,000 
6,245,000 

Total $ 15,225,000 

General 
obligation 
notes 

88,394 
88,394 
70,152 
56,194 
56,194 
28,100 

Certificate 
of 

indebtedness 

1,305,000 
665,000 

QZAB loan 
payable 

223,972 
223,972 
223,972 
223,972 
223,972 

1,119,860 
783,907 

Interest 
paymen~ 

908,504 
783,256 
683,163 
624,175 
586,250 

2,268,450 
837.775 

Total 

3,190,870 
2,465,622 
1,727,287 
1,699,341 
1,711,416 
8,636,410 
7,866,682 

1,970,000 3,023,627 6,691,573 27,297,628 

In accordance w ith Louisiana Revised Statute 39:562, th e School Boar d is legally restricted from incurring 
long-term bonded debt in excess of 35%  of the assessed value of taxable property. At Jun e 30, 2002, th e 
statutory limit was $171,426,255, the outstanding bonded debt net of applicable debt service funds totaled 
$10,562,590, and the legal debt margin was $160,863,665. 
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(11) Other Required Individual Fund Disclosures 

(a) Interfund Receivables and Payables 

Interfimd balances at June 30, 2002 were as follows: 

DUE TO OTHER FUN~ S 

DUE FROM  OTHER FUNDS 

General Fund $ 
Debt Service Fund 

Internal Service Fund 

General 
Fund Sales Tax BEEF 

Noninajor Special Revenue 
Funds 158,153 

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds 4791937 

Nonmajor 
Internal Special 
Service Revenue 
Fund Fund 

3,267 1,000 470,829 

Nonmajor 
Capital 
Projects 
Fund Total 

900,135 5,129,689 

I0 

2,995,436 

158,153 

479,937 

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are 
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) tran sactions are recorded in the accounting system, 
an d (3) payments betw een funds are made. 

(b) Transfers 

Transfers for th e year ended June 30, 2002 were as follows: 

TRANSFERS IN 

TRANSFERS OUT 

General Fund 

Sales Tax Fund 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds 

General 
Fund 

$ 
14,573,475 

3,604 

7,488,639 

Nonmajor 
Special 
Revenue 
Fund 

113,432 

172,851 

Nonmajor 
CapRal 

Projects 
Fund Total 

7,483,613 

7.483.613 

113,432 

22,229,939 

3,604 

7.488.639 

29.835.614 

(c) New Funds 

During the year, the School Board created the Qualified Zone Academy Bond Capital Projects Fund. 
This fund was established to account for approximately $3 million in loan  proceeds received as part 
of the Qualified Zo ne Academy Bond Program (QZAB) through the Louisiana Community 
Development Authority . The loan is interest free and is to be paid back over a period of 15 years. 
QZAB loan  proceeds must be used for projects linked to instruction in schools where 35% or more 
of the students are eligible for reduced lunch prices. 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
 

June 30, 2002
 

(12) Commitments and Contingencies 

Litigation 

At June 30, 2002, the School Board is involved in various litigation. In connection with one suit it has 
been detennined that risk of loss is probable and an estimate can be made therefore a liability has been 
accrued. It is the opinion of the legal advisor for the School Board that ultimate resolution of the 
remaining lawsuits will not materially affect the financial statements. 

Tax Arbitrage Rebate 

Under the Tax Refonn Act of 1986, interest earned on the debt proceeds in excess of interest expense 
prior to the disbursement of the proceeds must be rebated to the Internal Revenue Service. Management 
believes there is no tax arbitrage liability at year end. 

Grant Audits 

The School Board participates in a number of state and federally assisted grant programs. The programs 
are subject to compliance audits under the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996. Such audits could lead 
to requests for reimbursement by the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under tenns of the grants. 
School Board management believes that the amount of loss, if any, which may arise from future audits will 
not be significant. 

Risk Management 

The School Board is partially self-insured for workers' compensation, health insurance, and general 
liability coverage. Claims are funded through employee and employer contributions and operating funds 
of the School Board. All known claims filed and an estimate of incurred but not reported claims based on 
experience of the School Board are made and accrued as necessary in the financial statements. 

The School Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The School Board is a defendant in several lawsuits 
involving civil actions. The School Board is self-insured for general liability claims up to $25,000. The 
School Board currently reports all of its risk management activities except for employees' health insurance 
in the General Fund. An insurance policy covers individual general liability claims in excess of $200,000. 
Claims expenditures and liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the 
amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. 

The School Board maintains a risk management program for workers' compensation. During the fiscal 
year, a total of $272,909 was paid in workers compensation claims. An excess coverage insurance policy 
covers individual workers compensation claims in excess of$175,000. 
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The School Board maintains a risk management program for employees' health insurance. Premiums are 
paid into the health insurance internal service fund by all other funds and are available to pay claims, 
claim reserves and administrative costs of the program. An excess coverage insurance policy covers 
individual claims in excess of $150,000. Interfund premiums are based primarily upon the individual 
funds' payroll and are reported as expenditures in the individual funds. The incurred but not reported 
claims at year end of $1,905,893 has been accrued based upon the third party administrator's calculation 
using historical claim experience. 

Changes in the reported liability for the current and recent previous fiscal year are as follows: 

Current 
Beginning year Benefit 

of claims and and Balance at 
fiscal year changes in claim fiscal year 

liability estimates payments end 
Group health insurance 

2000-2001 $ 3,014,157 15,820,692 17,079,157 1,755,692 
2001-2002 1,755,692 17,197,562 17,047,361 1,905,893 

Workers' compensation 
2000-2001 139,253 545,709 348,659 336,303 
2001-2002 336,303 272,909 272,909 336,303 

Claims and judgments 
2000-2001 10,000 10,000 
2001-2002 10,000 432,500 442,500 

The School Board continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled claims 
resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal 
years. 

(13) Bossier Educational Excellence Fund 

The Bossier Educational Excellence Fund (the BEEF) is a permanent fund. The fund is used to account 
for the trust principal, investment earnings and boarding fees from area casinos as provided for in 
Louisiana Revised Statute LSA-R.S. 27:93 and license fees from an area horse racing facility as provided 
in Louisiana Revised Statute LSA-R.S. 4.163.1. The BEEF was established in recognition of the need to 
earmark and set aside a portion of the earnings from gaming in Bossier Parish to be used exclusively for 
educational enhancements. The School Board used earnings from the fund for enhancements to the 
education program in Bossier Parish. 

Annual fees received from the casinos are the result of an agreement between the School Board and the 
casinos for specified amounts or percentages as opposed to actual boarding fees. During 2002, fees from 
the area casinos and horse racing facility totaled $1,597,929. The BEEF monies are invested in U.S. 
Agency obligations as allowed by state statute. The principal portion of the funds of $9,189,186 must be 
retained and may not be expended. 
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(14) On-Behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries 

On-behalf payments for fringe benefits and salaries are direct payments made by an entity (the paying 
agent) to a third-party recipient for the employees of another, legally separate entity (the employer entity). 
GASB Statement No. 24 requires employer governments to recognize revenue and expenditures or 
expenses for these on-behalf payments. 

The state of Louisiana made pension contributions (regarding Professional Improvement Program) directly 
to the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana on behalf of the School Board in the amount of $52,303. 
This amount was recognized as state revenue and a corresponding expenditure in the applicable fund from 
which the salary was paid. 

(15) Changes in Accounting Principles 

For the year ended June 30, 2002, the School Board implemented GASB Statement No. 34, Basic 
Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments; 
GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis -for 
State and Local Governments: Omnibus; GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note 
Disclosures; and Governmental Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No.6, Recognition and 
Measurement ofCertain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements. 

GASB Statement No. 34 creates new basic financial statements for reporting on the School Board's 
financial activities. The financial statements now include government-wide financial statements prepared 
on the accrual basis of accounting, and fund financial statements which present information for individual 
major funds rather than by fund type which had been the mode of presentation in previously issued 
financial statements. Nonmajor funds are presented in total in one column in the fund financial statements. 
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The implementation of GASB Statement No. 34 caused the opening fund balances at June 30,2001 to be 
restated in terms of "net assets" as follows: 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds - at June 30,2001 $ 5,216,173 

Add: Cost of capital assets at June 30, 2001 
Less: accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2001 
Bond issue costs, net of accumulated amortization at 

June 30, 2001 
Permanent Fund - BEEF at June 30, 2001 

$ 144,843,561 
87,840,992 

95,564 
8,073,277 65,171,410 

Less: Long-term debt: 
Bond principal outstanding at June 30,2001 
Notes payable outstanding at June 30, 2001 
Certificates of indebted outstanding at 

June 30,2001 
Capital lease payable at June 30, 2001 
Claims and judgments payable at June 30, 200 I 
Compensated absences payable at June 30, 2001 

Accrued interest payable at June 30,2001 

15,845,000 
475,822 

3,205,000 
1,653,424 

10,000 
5,850,689 

346,734 27,386,669 

$ 43,000,914 

Adoption of GASB Statements No.37 and 38 were required simultaneously with GASB Statement No. 34 
and resulted in additional disclosures. At June 30, 2001, there was no effect on fund balance as a result of 
implementation of GASB Interpretation No.6. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEM ENTAL INFORM ATION 
(PART B) 



Revenues: 
Local sources: 

Taxes: 
Ad valorem 
Sales and use 

Interest earnings 
Other 

Total local sources 

State sources: 
State equalization 
Other state program s 

Gran ts and other 

Tota l state sources 

Federal an d other sources 

Total revenues 

BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 

am ounts 
O riginal 

budget 

14,439,403 
20,581,395 

Final 

budget 

17,228,180 
22,000,000 

Actual 

am ounts 

(budgetary 
basis) 

17,643,485 
22,065,718 

130,000 70,000 220,751 
1~925,796 

37,076~594 

2,215,715 

41~513,895 

Variance with 
final budget 
positive 

~negative) 

415,305 
65,718 
150.751 

2,225,892 10
~177 

42,155,846 641,951 

55,239,907 57,730,544 57
,730,544 

2r235,175 2,684,346 

57,475,082 60,414,890 

1.771.646 

3.057.640 

60,788,184 373
~294 

2,416,994 2,6691934 252,940 

96~323~322 104,345,779 105
,613,964 1,268

~185 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Support services: 
Student services 
Instructional staff support 
G eneral adm inistration 
School adm inistration 
Business services 
Plant serv ices 
Student transportation serv ices 
Central serv ices 

Com munity service 
Debt Service - principal 
Debt Service - interest 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 

Other finan cing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from revenue an ticipation notes 
Transfers out 

Total other finan cing sources 

(uses) 

Net chan ge in fun d balance 

Fund balan ce at beginning of year 

Fund balan ce at end of year 

Budgeted am ounts 
O riginal 

budget 
Final 

budget 

Actual 
am ounts 

(budgetary 
basis) 

Variance with 
final budget 
positive 

(negative) 

$ 59,113,917 63,982,708 63,793,395 189,313 

3,671,800 
4,773,639 
794,102 

7,618,789 
1,284,221 
9,411,514 
5,878,364 
945,511 
10,000 

4,170,000 
209~268 

97.881.125 

4,125,789 
5,160,725 
914,708 

8,422,960 
1,049,464 
9,483,179 
6,129,630 
923,988 
45,120 

4,235,000 

4,097,699 
5,282,682 
1,559,618 
7,780,859 
1,041,012 
10,333,785 
6,111,879 
868,203 
200,614 

4290,993 
193,543 193~543 

28,090 

(121,957) 
(644,910) 
642,101 
8,452 

(850,606) 
17,751 
55,785 

(155,494) 
(55,993) 

104,666,814 105,554,282 (887,468) 

(1,557,803) (321,035) 59,682 380,717 

3,000,000 

(150,000) 

2~850,000 

1,292,197 

569)48 

$ 1,862,145 

Unaudited - see accom pan ying independent auditors' report. 
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3,000,000 

(150,000) 

2,850,000 

2,528,965 

5697948 

3,098,913 

3,000,000 

(113,432) 

2,886,568 

2,946,250 

569.948 

36~568 

417,285 

3,516,198 417,~85 



Revenues: 
Local so~.trces: 

Sales and use tax 
hlterest earnings 

Total revenues 

Expenditures - current: 
Support services: 

General adm inistration 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 

Total other fm un cin g uses - 
tran sfers out 

Net change in fund balan ce 

Fund balan ce at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

BOSSIER PARISH  SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Fund 
Sales Tax Fund 

Budgetary Com parison Schedule 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 

Budseted am ounts 
Original 
budget 

$ 22,500,000 
600 

Final 
budget 

22,481,011 
500 

Actual 
am ounts 

(budgetary 
(basis) 

22,450,840 
84 

Variance with 
final budget 
positive 

(negative) 

(30,171) 
(416) 

22,500fi00 22,481 r511 22~450~924 (30,587) 

300.000 300,000 220,985 79,015 

22,200,600 22,181,511 22,229,939 48,428 

(22,200,600) (22,181,511) (22,229,939) (48,428) 

Unaudited - see accompan ying independent auditors' report. 
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Budget and Budgetary A ccounting 

The School Board utilizes the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the finan cial 
statem ents: 

(a) Prior to June 30, the Superintendent submits to the School Board a proposed operating budget for the 
General Fund, certain Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, certain Capital Projects Funds and 
Perm anent Fund for th e fiscal year comm encing th e prior July 1. The operating budget includes 
proposed expenditures and sources of funding. A public hear ing is then conducted after proper official 

journal notification to obtain taxpayer comments. Prior to September 15, the budget is legally adopted 
by the School Boar d dur ing public session. Th e only legal requirement is that the School Board adopts a 

balanced budget; that is, total budgeted revenues and other financing sources (including fund balance) 
must equal or exceed total budgeted expenditures and other financing uses. Th e budget is revised 
periodically throughout the school year, when deemed appropriate, but a balan ced budget is always 
approved. 

(b) Appropriations which are not expended lapse at year end. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted 
or as amended by th e School Board. 

(c) Form al budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the 
General Fund, certain Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, certain Capital Projects Funds and 
Perman ent Fund. All budgets are operational at the departmental or project level. School Board policy 
prescribes th at th e level of budgetary control is at th e fun ctional level for the General Fun d, Debt 

Service Fund, Capital Projects Fun d and Perm anent Fund an d at the fund level for the Special Revenue 
Funds. Legal requirements provide th at expenditures may not exceed appropriations in excess of five 
percent of budgeted expenditures at the fund level. The Superintendent of the School Board is 
auth orized to transfer budget am ounts between line item activity and betw een any functions of an  
individual fund; however, any supplemental appropriations that amend th e total expenditures of an y 
fu nd require School Board re solution. The effects of budget revisions passed during the year for th e 
General Fund were to increase net revenues by $8.0 million for more ad valorem tax revenue than 
originally anticipated as a result of new property added to tax rolls, higher than expected sales tax 
revenues, and an increase in the am ount received under th e M inimum Foundation Progr am an d to 
increase net expenditures by $6.8 million for additional salaries. The effects of other budget revisions 
passed during the year were insignificant to the budgets as originally approved. 

Reconciliation of the Budgetary  Basis and the GAAP Basis 

The School Board approves form al budgets for the General Fund, certain Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service 

Fun d, certain Capital Projects Funds and Perm anent Fun d. All budgets, except for the General Fund, are 
prepared on th e GAAP basis. Budget/GAAP reporting differences in th e General Fund are primarily a result of 
reclassification. Sales taxes were reported as operating tran sfers in for GAAP purposes, but were budgeted as 
revenues for budget purposes. Debt service expenditures for capital leases were reported separately for GAAP 
reporting purposes, but were reported by functional categories for budget purposes. 
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The following schedule reconciles the actual amounts on a GAAP basis for the General Fund to the actual 
amounts on a budgetary basis. 

Fund balance on a budgetary basis 
Revenues: 
Local sources: 
Taxes - sales and use 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
Plant services 

Debt serv ice: 
Principal retirement 
Interest and bank charges 

Other financing sources: 
Operating transfers in 

Fund balance on a GAAP basis 

Excess of Expenditures Over Budget - M ajor Funds 

G eneral 
Fund 

3,516,198 

22,065,718 

(538,525) 

448,145 
90,380 

(22,065,718) 

$ 

For those funds for which a budget to actual comparison was made, 2002 actual expenditures exceeded budgeted 
expenditures at the legal level of control as follows: 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds - 

School Food Serv ice 

58 

Exoenditures 
Actual 

$ 104,666,814 105,554,282 

7,208,576 7,442,960 

Negative 
vadance 

887,468 

234,384 
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002 

SUPPLEM ENTAL IN FO RM A TIO N 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002 

NONM AJOR GOVERNM ENTAL FUND S 

Special R evenue Funds 

Title I - To improve the educational opportunities of educationally deprived children by helping them succeed in 
the regular school program, attain gr ade level proficiency and improve achievem ent in basic an d more advanced 
skills. Primarily for provision of compensatory instructional activities to educationally deprived children that 
reside in low-income areas and have been selected on the basis of a needs assessment. Services supplement, not 
supplant, th ose normally provided by state and local educational agencies. 

Title VI - To assist state and local educational agencies to improve elementary an d secondary education. 

Gran ts are awarded for students at risk of failure in school; instructional materials; school-wide improvements 
and effective school programs; training and professional development; early identification of children with 
reading disabilities; personal excellence of students and stu dent achievements; an d innovative enhan cement 

projects to the educational program  an d climate of the school. 

M ath and Science - Title H - To improve th e skills of teachers and the quality of instruction in m athematics and 
science, also to increase the accessibility of such instruction to all students. 

Special Education - To provide gran ts to states to assist them in providing a free appropriate public education to 
all children w ith disabilities. 

PRESCHOOL 

Paym ents to States for Child Care Assistance - To make gr an ts available to assist low-income fam ilies with 
child care services. The purpose of the program is to increase the availability, affordability, an d quality of child 
care an d to increase the availability of early childhood development an d before- and after-school program s. 

Special Education - Preschool G rants - To provide grants to states to assist them in providing a free 
appropriate public education to preschool disabled children aged three through five years. 

Title IV - (Drug-Free) - To establish state and local programs of alcohol and drug abuse education an d 
prevention coordinated with related community efforts an d resources. 

Region VII Service Center - This progr am  was designed to provide workshops for teachers an d administrators. 
Th e Teacher Evaluation Progr am  is coordinated th rough this program . W orkshops provide points to 
administrators towards their continuing education. 
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Benton, Louisiana
 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds 

School Food Senrice 

• National School Food Service Program 
• School Breakfast Program 
• Food Distribution Commodities 

This program was designed to assist through cash grants and food donations in providing a nutritious breakfast 
and lunch service for school students and to encourage the domestic consumption of nutritious agricultural 
commodities. 

Goals 2000 - To provide grants to State Education Agencies (SEAs) on a formula basis to support the 
development and implementation of comprehensive reform plans at the state, local, and school levels to improve 
the teaching and learning of all children. To support top down and bottom up reform through subgrants by SEAs 
of 90 percent of these grant funds to local education agencies (LEAs) and through LEAs to individual schools. 
To support the establishment by states and localities of high standards in their core content areas. All aspects of 
the educational process are aligned including, but not limited to assessments, curriculum, professional 
development, and pre-service training. 

Capital Projects Funds 

One-Half Cent Sales Tax Air Conditioner Fund - To account for the acquisition and/or construction of major 
capital facilities by the School Board. Proceeds from general obligation bond sales are accounted for in this fund 
until the capital projects are completed. 

QZAB Loan Fund - To account for the proceeds from the Qualified Zone Academy Bond Program as well as 
the expenditure of those funds for capital purposes within the requirements of the debt. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Combining Balance Sheet - By Fund Type 

Governmental Activities 

June 30, 2002 

Assets 

Special 
Revenue 
Funds 

Capital 
Project 
Funds Total 

Cash 
Receivables 
Interfund receivable 
Inventories 

$ 1,788,322 
348,166 
158,153 
129,212 

3,056,054 
1,493 

479,937 

4,844,376 
349,659 
638,090 
129,212 

Total assets $ 2,423,853 3,537,484 5,961,337 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Salaries payable 
Interfund payable 

$ 399,688 
1,223,597 

470,829 

185,251 

900,135 

584,939 
1,223,597 
1,370,964 

Total liabilities 2,094,114 1,085,386 3,179,500 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for inventory 
Unreserved: 

Designated for capital projects 
Undesignated 

129,212 

200,527 
2,452,098 

129,212 

2,452,098 
200,527 

Total fund balances 329,739 2,452,098 2,781,837 

Total liabilities and fund 
balances $ 2,423,853 3,537,484 5,961,337 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Revenues: 
Local sources: 
Interest earnings 
Food services 

State sources: 
Equalization 
Other 

Federal and other sources 

Total revenues 

Expenditures - current: 
Instruction 
Support services: 
Student serv ices 

BO SSIER PARISH  SCH O OL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Chan ges in Fund Balan ces - By Fund Type 
Governm ental Activities 

Instructional staff  support 
General adm inistration 
Business serv ices 
Plan t services 
Student transportation services 

Food serv ices 

Total expenditures 

Deficiency of revenues under 
expenditures 

Other finan cing sources (uses): 
Loan  proceeds 
Transfers in 
Tran sfers out 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 

Total oth er financing sources 

N et change in fund balan ces 

Fund balan ces at beginning of year 

Fund balan ces at end of year 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 

Special 
Revenue 
Funds 

3,791 
2,178,708 

1,679,004 
30,682 

8,844,184 

Capital 
Project 
Funds Total 

16,643 20,434 
2,178,708 

1,679,004 
30,682 

8,844,184 

12,736,369 16,643 12,753,012 

2,809,737 

634,316 
1,648,351 
257,225 
43,131 
22,855 
142,867 

7,442,960 

13,001,442 

644,165 

644.165 

2,809,737 

634,316 
1,648,351 
257,225 
43,13t 
667,020 
142,867 

7,442,960 

13,645,607 

(265,073) (627,522) (892,595) 

E  

286,283 

(3,604) 
282,679 

17,606 

312,133 

$ 329,739 

3,079,620 
7,483,613 
(7,488,639) 
3,074,594 

2,447,072 

3,079,620 
7,769,896 
(7,492,243) 
3,357,273 

2,464,678 

5.026 317.159 

2,452,098 2,781,837 





BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Nonrnajor Special Revenue Funds 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficit) 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 

$=== 

Title I Title VI Title II 
Special 

Education Preschool 
Title IV 

(Drug-Free) 

Region VII 
Service 
Center 

School 
Food 

Service 

Revenues: 
Local sources: 

Investment income 
Food services 

State sources: 
Equalization 
Other 

Federal sources 

$ 

2,449,420 696,359 87,643 2,048,656 106,932 82,182 
30,682 
55,254 

3,791 
2,178,708 

1,679,004 

3,315,414 

Total revenues 2,449,420 696,359 87,643 2,048,656 106,932 82,182 85,936 7,176,917 

Expenditures - current: 
Instruction 
Support services: 

Student services 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 
Food services 

21,058 
289 

315,794 
281,713 
135,316 

1,695,250 607,250 

81,997 
7,112 

19,590 

63,574 
4,479 

482,465 

243,033 
1,040,532 

95,120 
43,131 

1,797 
142,578 

4,301 

96,843 
5,788 

75,489 
2,100 
4,593 

80,149 
4,817 

7,442,960 

Total expenditures 2,449,420 696,359 87,643 2,048,656 106,932 82,182 84,966 7,442,960 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 970 (266,043) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

10,252 

~ 

276,031 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 6,648 276,031 

Net change in fund balances 7,618 9,988 

Fund balances (deficit) at beginning of year _ (6,648) 318,781 

Fund balances at end of year 970 328,769 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

66 

Goals 
2000 Total 

3,791 
2,178,708 

1,679,004 
30,682 

2,324 8,844,184 

2,324 12,736,369 

881 2,809,737 

634,316 
1,443 1,648,351 

257,225 
43,131 
22,855 

142,867 
7,442,960 

2,324 13,001,442 

(265,073) 

286,283 
(3,604) 

282,679 

17,606 

312,133 

329,739 



Revenues - federal sources 

BO SSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Fund 

Title I 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balance - Budget and Actu al 

For the year ended Jone 30, 2002 

Expenditures - current: 
Instruction and support services: 
Instruction 
Student services 
Instructional staff support 
General adm inistration 
Plant services 
Student transportation serv ices 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balan ce at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

See accom pan ying in dependent auditors' report. 

Actual 

Variance 
with budget 
positive 

(negative) 

$ 2,868,717 2,449,420 (419,297) 

$ 

2,116,838 
309,184 
285,668 
157,027 

1,695,250 
315,794 
281,713 
135,316 
21,058 

289 

421,588 

(6,610) 
3,955 
21,711 
(21,058) 
(289) 

2,868,717 2,449,420 419,297 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Fund 

Title VI 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the year ended June 30, 2002 

Variance 
with budget 

positive 
Budget Actual (negative) 

Revenues - federal sources $ 801,465 696,359 (105,106) 

Expenditures - current: 
Instruction and support services: 

Instruction 643,136 607,250 35,886 
Instructional staff support 152,406 81,997 70,409 
General administration 5,923 7,112 (1,189) 

Total expenditures 801,465 696,359 105,106 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year $ 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Fund 

Title II 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the year ended June 30, 2002 

Revenues - federal sources $ 

Budget 

167,401 

Actual 

87,643 

Variance 
with budget 

positive 
(negative) 

(79,758) 

Expenditures - current: 
Instruction and support services: 

Instruction 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Plant services 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year $ 

46,081 
111,704 

9,366 
250 

167,401 

19,590 
63,574 

4,479 

87,643 

26,491 
48,130 

4,887 
250 

79,758 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Fund 

Special Education 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the year ended June 30, 2002 

Variance 
with budget 

positive 
Budget Actual (negative) 

Revenues - federal sources $ 2,293,463 2,048,656 (244,807) 

Expenditures - current: 
Instruction and support services: 

Instruction 486,709 482,465 4,244 
Student services 126,861 243,033 (116, (72) 
Instructional staff support 1,427,949 1,040,532 387,417 
General administration 96,108 95,120 988 
Business services 47,704 43,131 4,573 
Plant services 12,612 1,797 10,815 
Student transportation services 95,520 142,578 (47,058) 

Total expenditures 2,293,463 2,048,656 244,807 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance at beginning ofyear 

Fund balance at end ofyear $ 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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BOSSffiRPAWSHSCHOOLBOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Fund 

Preschool 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the year ended June 30, 2002 

Variance 
with budget 

positive 
Budget Actual (negative) 

Revenues - federal sources $ 109,542 106,932 (2,610) 

Expenditures - current: 
Instruction and support services: 

Instruction 6,096 4,301 1,795 
Instructional staff support 97,305 96,843 462 
General administration 6,141 5,788 353 

Total expenditures 109,542 106,932 2,610 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance at beginning ofyear 

Fund balance at end ofyear $ 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Fund 

Title IV (Drug-Free) 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the year ended June 30, 2002 

Variance 
with budget 

positive 
Budget Actual (negative) 

Revenues - federal sources $ 118,861 82,182 (36,679) 

Expenditures - current: 
Instruction and support services: 

Student services 109,712 75,489 34,223 
Instructional staff support 2,500 2,100 400 
General administration 6,649 4,593 2,056 

Total expenditures 118,861 82,182 36,679 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year $ 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

72
 



BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
 
Benton, Louisiana
 

Special Revenue Fund
 

Region VII Service Center
 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
 
Balance - Budget and Actual
 

For the year ended June 30, 2002
 

Revenues: 
State sources - other 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

Expenditures - current: 
Instruction and support services: 

Instructional staff support 
General administration 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

Other fmancing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Budget 

$ 37,000 
78,077 

115,077 

115,077 

115,077 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance at beginning of year (6,648) 

Fund balance at end of year $ (6,648) 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Actual 

Variance 
with budget 

positive 
(negative) 

30,682 
55,254 

85,936 

(6,318) 
(22,823) 

(29,141) 

80,149 
4,817 

84,966 

34,928 
(4,817) 

30,111 

970 970 

10,252 
(3,604) 

6,648 

7,618 

(6,648) 

970 

10,252 
(3,604) 

6,648 

7,618 

7,618 
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BO SSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Fund 

School Food Service 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the year ended June 30, 2002 

Revenues: 
Local sources: 
Investm ent income 
Food services 
Other 

State sour ces - equalization 
Federal sour ces 

Tota l revenues 

Expenditures - current - instruction and 
support services - food serv ice 

Deficiency of revenues under expenditures 

Other finan cing sources - tran sfers in 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balan ce at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

See accom pan ying independent auditors' report. 

$ 5,500 
2,067,657 

14,500 
1,679,004 
3,069,324 

6,835,985 

Actual 

3,791 
2,178,708 

1,679,004 
3,315,414 

7,176,917 

7,208,576 7,442,960 

(372,591) 

340,000 

(32,591) 

318.781 

286,190 

74 

(266,043) 

276.031 

9,988 

318,781 

328,769 

V ariance 
with budget 
positive 

(negative) 

(1,709) 
111,051 

(14,500) 

246,090 

340,932 

(234,384) 

106,548 

(63,969) 

42,579 

42,579 



 

Assets 

Cash and cas h equivalents 
Receivables 
Interfund receivable 

Total assets 

BOSSIER PAR ISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Capital Project Funds 
Combining Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2002 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Accounts payable 
Interfund payable 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances - designated for capital projects 
Tota l liabilities and fund balances 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

O ne-H alf Cent 
Sales Tax Air QZAB Loan 
Conditioner Fund Total 

13,703 

479,937 

$ 493.640 

75 

493,640 

493.640 

493.640 

3,042,351 
1,493 

3,043,844 

185,251 
406,495 

591.746 

2,452,098 

3,043,844 

3,056,054 
1,493 

479.937 

3,537,484 

185,251 
900.135 

1,085,386 

2,452,098 

3,537,484 



 

BO SSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Capital Project Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, an d Changes in Fund Balances 

Year ended June 30, 2002 

Revenues - local sources - investment 
incom e 

Expenditures: 
Current - support services - plant serv ices 

Tota l expenditu res 

Deficiency of revenues under expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Loan proceeds 
Transfers in 
Tran sfers out 

Total other finan cing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing 
sources over (under) expenditures and other 
financin g uses 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year $ 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 

O ne-H alf Cent 
Sales Tax Air QZAB Loan 
Conditioner Fund Total 

7,483,613 

(7,488,639) 

76 

(5,026) 
5.026 

16.643 

644.165 

644,165 

16.643 

644,165 

644.165 

(627,522) (627,522) 

3,079,620 

3.079.620 

2,452,098 

3,079,620 
7,483,613 
(7,488,639) 
3,074,594 

2,447,072 

5,026 

2,452,098 2,452,098 



BO SSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Capital Projects Fund 
One-Half Cent Sales Tax Air Conditioner 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the year ended June 30, 2002 

Revenues - local sources investm ent in com e 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other finan cing uses 

Net chan ge in fund balan ce 

Fund balan ce at beginning of year 

Fund balan ce at end of year 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 

Budget 

100 

7,500,000 

(7,500,100) 

Actual 

7,483,613 

(7,488,639) 

Variance 
with budget 
positive 

(negative) 

(100) 

(16,387) 
11.461 

5.026 

5.026 

(5,026) (5,026) 

5,026 



Revenues~ 
Local sources: 
Interest earnings 
Other - gaming 

To~lrevenues 

BO SSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Bossier Educational Excellence Perm anent Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balance - Budget and Actual 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 

Expenditures - current - inslruction 

Net change in fund balan ce 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

See accompan ying independent auditors' report. 

350,000 
1,100,000 

1,450,000 

548,431 

901,569 

8,073,277 

78 

Actual 

207,629 
1,597,929 

1,805,558 

485,987 

1,319,571 

8,073,277 

9,392,848 

Variance 
with budget 
positive 

(negative) 

(142,371) 
497,929 

355,558 

62,444 

418,002 

418,002 



l~evenUes~ 
Local sources: 
Ad valorem taxes 
Interest earn ings 

State sources: 
Other 

BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Debt Service Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balance -Budget and Actual 

Fiscal year ended Jun e 30, 2002 

Totalrevenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General adm inistration 
Business services 

Debt service: 
Principal retirement 
Interest 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balance 

Fun d balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

1,550,000 
210,000 

Actual 

1,638,687 
101.458 

Variance 
with budget 
positive 

(negative) 

88,687 

(108,542) 

74,330 96,161 21,831 

1,834,330 1,836,306 

690 
88,456 

620,000 
882,162 

1,591,308 

243,022 

4,329,066 

800 

620,000 
882,162 

1,502,962 

333,344 

4,329,066 

1.976 

690 
87.656 

88,346 

90,322 

4,662,410 90,322 



BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002 

FIDUCIARY FUND  - SCH O OL ACTIVITY AG ENCY FUN D 

The School Activity Agency Fund accounts for those monies collected by pupils and school personnel for school 
or school-related purposes. The school activity accounts are classified as an  agency fund, and the School 
Board's responsibility for these accounts is fiduciary in nature. Each school accounts for its individual student 
body organizations. Th e revenues of these accounts consist primarily of fees, fund-raising projects, and 
contributions. Expenditures are made for a wide variety of school activities. These accounts are under the 
supervision of th e school principals. 



 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Deposits due others 

Total liabilities 

BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

School Activity Agency Fund 

Statement of Changes in Assets an d Liabilities 

Year ended June 30, 2002 

Balance 
July 1, 2001 

$ 1,811,383 

$ 33,397 
1,777,986 

$ 1,811,383 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Balance 
Additions Deductions June 30, 2002 

5,342,316 5,434,976 1,718,723 

29,671 
5,312,645 

5,342,316 

33,397 
5,401,579 

5,434,976 

29,671 
1,689,052 



BOSSIER PAR ISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002 

CAPITAL ASSETS INFO RM ATIO N 

The Capital Assets schedule records the fixed assets of the School Board which are used in governm ental fund- 
type operations. 



Capital assets 
Land 
Buildings an d improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Transportation equipment 

Total capital assets 

BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Schedule of Capital Assets - By Sources 

June 30, 2002 

Investment in general fixed assets: 
Investment prior to June 30, 1980 
Capital Projects Funds 
General Fund 
School Food Service Fund 
Federal aid 
State aid 
Donations 
School Activity Agency Fun d 

Total investm ent 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 

557,469 
118,968,376 
20,119,821 
8,035,857 

147,681,523 

66,154,106 
52,428,496 
22,155,584 

508,682 
3,214,299 
2,415,743 
699,938 
104.675 

147,681,523 



 

Function and Activity 

InsWuction: 
High schools 
M iddle schools 
Elem entary schools 
Parish wide textbooks 

BOSSIER PARISH  SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Schedule of Capital Assets - By Function and Activity 

June 30, 2002 

Total 

$ 36,009,535 
31,825,302 
39,721,061 
8~965,122 

Land and Buildings Furniture 
land and and Transportation 

improvements ~ rovements equipment equipment 

143,594 
319,426 
25,310 

32,315,228 
29,587,442 
37,393,986 

3,550,713 
1,918,434 
2,301,765 
8~965,122 

Total instruction 116,521,020 488,330 99~2
.
96,656 16~736,034 

Pupil support services 847,347 

Instructional staff support services 6,230,052 

General and school adm inistration 4,902,551 

Business services 4
,130,502 

Operation and maintenance of plant 380,675 

Central services 1,068,851 

Food service 5,539,668 

Tran sportation 8,060~857 

34,999 

5,500 

17,720 

10,000 

92O 

784,582 

4,581,197 

4,403,622 

3,989,488 

61,133 

636,136 

5,190,562 

25.000 

27,766 

1,643,355 

481,209 

131,014 

318,622 

432,715 

349,106 

8.035.857 

Total capital assets 
allocated to functions $

.
1
.
47,681,523 557,469 118

,968 376 20,119,821 8,035,857 

See accompan ying independent auditors' report. 
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Function and Activity 

Instruction: 
High schools 
M iddle schools 
Elementary schools 
Parish wide textbooks 

BO SSIER PARISH SCH O OL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Schedule of Changes in Capital Assets - 
By Function and Activity 

Year ended June 30, 2002 

Balance 
July 1, 2001 

35,726,307 
31,782,770 
39,627,858 
7.944.899 

Total instruction 115,081,834 

Pupil support services 

Instructional staff support services 

General and school administration 

Business services 

Operation and m aintenan ce of plan t 

Central services 

Food serv ices 

Tran sportation 

Total general ftxed assets 

847,347 

5,475,217 

4,817,449 

4,126,021 

336,303 

1,064,972 

5,534,187 

7,560,231 

$ 144,843,561 

See accompan ying independent auditors' report. 
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Additions Retirem ents 

283,228 
42,532 
93,203 

1,020,223 

1,439,186 

754,835 

85,102 

4,481 

44,372 

3,879 

5~481 

500.626 

2,837,962 

Balance 
June 30, 2002 

36,00~535 
31,825,302 
39,721,061 
8.965.122 

116,521,020 

847,347 

6,230,052 

4,902,551 

4,130,502 

380,675 

1,068,851 

5,539~668 

8,060,857 

147,681,523 
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Table 16 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Miscellaneous Statistical Data 

June 30, 2002 

Instruction Sites Constructed Capacity/Sq. Ft. Acreage 

High Schools: 
Airline 
Benton 
Bossier 
Haughton 
Parkway 
Plain Dealing 

1965 
1978 
1939 
1940 
1962 
1938 

238,724 
77,800 

142,300 
99,610 

132,473 
91,603 

98.33 
25.00 
18.14 
27.80 
28.70 
26.20 

Middle Schools: 
Cope 
Elm Grove 
Greenacres 
Rusheon 

1980 
1887 
1958 
1955 

82,547 
84,173 
76,700 
83,1l4 

14.23 
12.90 
17.17 
24.60 

Elementary/Middle Schools: 
Plain Dealing 
Benton 
Haughton 

1952 
1999 
1999 

65,169 
88,254 

105,708 

12.54 
14.70 
21.62 

Elementary Schools: 
Apollo 
Bellaire 
Benton 
Bossier 
Butler 
Central Park 
Curtis 
Kerr 
Meadowview 

1968 
1968 
1953 
1922 
1952 
1947 
1958 
1953 
1962 

69,158 
50,518 
60,093 
64,500 
32,495 
50,219 
46,518 
52,368 
59,300 

3.00 
10.68 
21.13 

4.90 
4.50 

10.00 
12.00 
11.44 
15.00 

101 (Continued) 



BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
 
Benton, Louisiana
 

Miscellaneous Statistical Data
 

June 30, 2002
 

Instruction Sites 

Elementary Schools, Cont: 
Plantation Park 
Platt 
Princeton 
Rocky Mount 
T.L. Rodes
 
Stockwell Place
 
Sun City
 
Waller
 

Other Instruction Sites: 
Bossier Parish Community College (4) 
Bossier Life Skills Center 
BPCC Criminal Justice Institute (4) 
Bossier Career Center 

Notes: 

(1) Included with Platt Elementary acreage. 

Capacity/Sq. Ft. 

1952 
1961 
1952 
1941 
1980 
1986 
1969 
1949 

52,292 
61,000 
60,000 
29,950 
54,875 
52,752 
49,890 
63,790 

1986 
1955 
1967 
1949 

51,724 
10,500 
26,700 
40,000 

Constructed 

(2) Included with Parkway High School acreage. 

(3) Included with Airline High School acreage - Community College originally housed in Airline High School. 
In 1986, a new library and classroom building was erected adjacent to the high school. 

(4) These sites are rented from the School Board by the State of Louisiana who operates the Community College and 
Criminal Justice Institute. 

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Table 16 

Acreage 

10.10 
20.00 
20.40 
10.20 

(1) 
10.33 

(2) 
9.30 

(3) 
2.20 
9.60 
6.66 



Table 17 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana
 

Schedule of Compensation Paid to School Board Members
 

Year ended June 30, 2002
 

The schedule of compensation paid to the School Board members is presented in compliance with House 
Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Compensation of the School 
Board members is included in the general administrative expenditures of the General Fund. In accordance with 
Louisiana Revised Statute 17:56, the School Board members have elected the monthly payment method of 
compensation. Under this method, each member of the School Board receives $500 per month, and the president 
receives $600 per month for performing the duties of his office. 

Board Member: Amount 

Vassie M. Richardson, President $ 6,600 

Kenneth M. Wiggins 6,000 

Henry Bums 6,000 

Elizabeth S. Cassibry 6,000 

Julian Darby 6,000 

Gary Dowden 6,000 

George C. Finck 6,000 

Mack Knotts 6,000 

William Kostelka 6,000 

Gloria Simison 6,000 

J. W. Slack 6,000 

Michael M. Graham 6,600 

$ 73,200 

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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BO SSIER  PAR ISH  SCH O O L BO ARD  
Benton, Louisiana 

OM B Circular A -133 Reports 

Y ear ended June 30, 2002 
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333 Texas Street, Suite 1900 

Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Auditors' Report on Com pliance and on Internal Control 
Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statem ents 
Performed in Accordance W ith Government Auditing Standards 

M em bers of the Bossier Parish School Boar d 
Benton, Louisiana: 

W e have audited the financial statements of the Bossier Parish School Board (School Board) as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2002 an d have issued oar  report thereon dated November 1, 2002, which includes 
an  explanatory paragraph due to chan ges in accounting principles in 2002. W e conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted  in the United States of America an d the standards 
applicable to finan cial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. 

Com pliance 

A s part of obtaining reasonable as surance about wheth er th e School Boar d's finan cial statem ents are free 
of m aterial m isstatem ent, we perform ed tests of its compliance w ith certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and gran ts, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determ ination of financial statem ent am ounts. However, providing an opinion on com pliance w ith those 

provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncomplian ce th at ar e required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Report ing 

In plannin g and perform ing our audit, we considered the School Board's internal control over fmancial 
reporting in order to determ ine our  auditing proced ures for the purpose of expre ssing our opinion on the 
financial statements an d not to provide as surance on the internal control over finan cial reporting. Our  
consideration of internal control over financial reporting would not necessar ily disclose all matters in 
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design 
or operation of one or more internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk 
th at misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited 
may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in th e normal course of performing 
their assigned functions. W e noted no matters involving intern al control over finan cial reporting and its 
operation th at we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted oth er matters involving the 
intern al control over finan cial reporting, which we have reported to management of the School Board in a 
separate leRer dated November 1, 2002. 



N ovem ber 1, 2002 



333 Texas Street, Suite 1900 

Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Auditors' Report on Com pliance W ith Requirem ents Applicable to Each 

M ajor Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance W ith 
OM B Circular A-133 and on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

M embers of the Bossier Parish School Board 
Benton, Louisiana: 

Com pliance 

W e have audited the compliance of the Bossier Parish School Board (School Board) with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2002. The School Board's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' 
results section of th e accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the 

requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is 
the responsibility of the School Board's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
School Board's compliance based on our audit. 

W e conducted our audit of complian ce in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of Am erica; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States. Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require th at we plan  and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuran ce about whether noncomplian ce 
with th e types of complian ce requirements referred to above that could have a direct and m aterial effect on 

a major federal program occurred. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence about the School 
Boar d's complian ce with those requirements and perform ing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circum stances. W e believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our 
audit does not provide a legal determination of the School Board's complian ce with those requirements. 

In our opinion, th e School Board complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above 

that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2002. 

Internal Control Over Com pliance 

The managem ent of th e School Board is responsible for establishing an d maintaining effective internal 
control over complian ce with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, an d gran ts applicable to federal 
program s. In planning and perform ing our audit, we considered the School Board's internal control over 
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program  in 



order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to 
test an d report on the internal control over complian ce in accordance with OM B Circular A-133. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in internal 
control that might be a material weakness. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or 
operation of one or more internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that 
noncompliance with th e applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would be 

material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely 
period by em ployees in the norm al course of perform ing their assigned functions. W e noted no matters 
involving internal control over compliance an d its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

W e have audited th e bas ic financial statements of the School Board as of an d for the year ended June 30, 
2002 and have issued our report thereon dated November 1, 2002, which includes an  explanatory 
paragraph due to changes in accounting principles in 2002. Our audit was performed for the purpose of 
form ing an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional an alysis as required by OM B 
Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic finan cial statements. Such information has been 

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic finan cial statements and, in our 
opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to th e basic financial statements taken as whole. 

This report is intended solely for th e inform ation and use of m anagem ent, m embers of the Bossier Parish 
School Board, the State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, an d federal awarding agencies and pass-through 
entities an d is not intended to be an d should not be used by anyone other than th ese specified parties. 

N ovem ber 1, 2002 



 

BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2002 

G rant title 

U.S. Departm ent of Agriculture 
Noncash federal award - Passed through Louisiana 

Department of Agriculture an d Forestry - Food 
Distribution (Commodities) 

Passed through Louisiana Departm ent of Education 
Child Nutrition Cluster: 

School Breakfast Program 
National School Lunch Progr am  

Total U.S. Departm ent of Agriculture 

U.S. Departm ent of Education 
Direct Program s: 

~mpa~ Aid, (Tit!,c V~II) 
Pas sed through Louisiana Departm ent of Education 

Adult Education - State Grant Program 

Federal 
CFDA 
num ber 

G rant 
num ber 

10.550 N/A 

10.553 
10.555 

g4.~4~ 

84.002 

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 

Gran ts for Infants an d Fam ilies with Disabilities (Part C) 
Special Education Cluster: 
Gran ts to States (Part B) 

Preschool Gran ts 

Vocational Education: 
Basic Gran ts to States 
Tech-Pr ep Education 
School-to-W ork 

Innovative Education Program  Strategies - Title VI 

84.181 

84.027 

84.173 

84.048 
84.243 
84.000 
84.298 

Title I1 (Eisenhower Professional Development) 84.28 l 

Title IV (Safe an d Drug-Free Schools - State Grant) 84.186 

008-SL-0006 
008-SL-0006 

I,I[A 

28024408 
28023308 
28014408 C/O to 2002 
01-TI-08 
01-TI-08-1C/O to 2002 
02-TI-08-I 
02-H3-08 

01-B1-08 
02-B 1-08 
01-P1-08 
02-P 1-08 

$ 353.808 

0202-08 
SB08/00-02TP 
N/A 
01-00-08 
00-00-08-06 C/O to2001 
02-00-08 
01-00-08 C/O to2002 
01-50-08 
00-50-08-01 C/O to2001 
02-50-08 
01-50-08 C/O to2002 
01-70-08 
01-70-08C/O to2002 
02-70-08 

603,947 
2.363,159 

gg6324 

230,355 

2,465,808 

15,083 

2,013,693 

109,062 

79,181 
94,772 
45,014 
65,940 

87,644 

98,260 

(Continued) 



BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2002 

U.S. Departm ent of Education, continued 
Technology Improvem ent Grant 
Class-Size Reduction - Title VI 

Federal 
CFDA 
num ber 

84.318 
84.340 

Passed through the Office of the Louisiana Lieutenant 
Govern or: 

Learn for the 21 st Century (Goals 2000 State Grant) 84.276 

Total U.S. Departm ent of Education 

U.S. Departm ent of H ealth and H um an Services 
Passed through the Louisian a Department of Education: 

Child Care an d Development Block Grant 
(Starting Points Preschool) 

Title XIX : 
EPSDT K idm ed School Nurse 
EPSDT Kidm ed Social W orker 

M edieaid Program  

93.575 

13.714 
13.714 

G rant 
num ber 

0214-08 
01-01-08-6 
02-01-08-6 

2801PD-08 
01oLTS-08 
01LI08 

0238-08 

1415103 
1415103 

93.778 1701173 

Total U.S. Department of Health an d Hum an Services 

U.S. Departm ent of Defense Direct Program s 
Departm ent of th e A irforce - ROTC 
Departm ent of the Arm y - Star Base 

Total U.S. Departm ent of Defense Direct Program s 

Tota l federal expenditures 

N/A 
N/A 

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards 

N/A 
N/A 

Expenditures 

224,863 
530.419 

2,324 

84,578 

114,588 
3.647 

320,812 
224.602 

545.414 

11,479,080 



(1) General 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year  ended June 30, 2002 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the 
Bossier Par ish School Board and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information 

in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule 
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general purpose finan cial 
statem ents. 

(2) Noncash Programs 

Commodities received, which are noncash revenues, are valued using prices provided by the United States 
Department of Agriculture. 

(3) Loans Outstanding 

The Bossier Parish School Board had $387,428 of loan  balances outstan ding at June 30, 2002. Th e 
proceeds of these loans were received in a previous fiscal year under form er CFDA //66.702 for asbestos 
removal. 



BOSSIER PAR ISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended June 30, 2002 

Section 1 - Sum m ary of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of report issued: unqualified opinion 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

~ M aterial weakness(es) identified? No 

~ Reportable condition(s) identified that are not considered to be material weakness(es)? None reported 

N oncompliance m aterial to finan cial statem ents noted? No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

~ Material weakness(es) identified? N__oo 

~ Reportable condition(s) identified  that are not considered to be material weakness(es)? None reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major program: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
133?N o 

Identification of major programs: 

unoualified opinion 

accordance with section 510(a) of Circular A- 

CFDA N um ber Nam e of Federal Program  or Cluster 

10.555 United States Departm ent of Agriculture - 
Child Nutrition 

84.041 United States Department of Education - Impact Aid 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $344,372 

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? Ye_~s 

Section 2 - Financial Statem ent Findings 

N one 

Section 3 - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

N one 



333 Texas Street, Suite 1900 
Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Accountants' Report 
on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

To the M embers of the Bossier Parish School Board 
Benton, Louisiana: 

W e have perform ed the procedures included in the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide and enum erated 
below, which were agreed to by the management of Bossier Parish School Board and th e Legislative 
Auditor, State of Louisiana, solely to assist the users in evaluating man agement's as sertions about the 
Bossier Parish School Board's complian ce with the requirements for preparing th e perform an ce and 
statistical data schedules accompanying this report as provided by the Board of Elementary an d Secondary 

Education (BESE). This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation 
stan dards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these 
procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of the report. Consequently, we make no 
representation regar ding th e suffi ciency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which 
this report has been requested or for an y other purpose. 

General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and Certain Local Revenue Sources 

(Schedule 1) 

1. W e judgmentally selected a sample of 30 transactions from the general ledger accounts that comprise 
the amounts from Schedule 1, as identified below, and compared the items selected to invoices or 
third party documentation of revenue amounts received. 

Categories tested: 

~ Total General Fund Instructional Expenditures 
~ Tota l General Fund Instructional Equipment Expenditures 

~ Total Local Taxation Revenue 
~ Total Local Earnings on Investm ent in Real Property 
* Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 
~ Nonpublic Textbook Revenue 



Sample selected 

Expenditures 

PaYel 

1 Uuisource 
2 Stuart's Inc. 

3 Educational Resources 

4 School Book Supply 
5 Fabric Boutique 

6 Renaissan ce L~ ing 
7 Nystrom 

8 Sax Arts and Crafts 

9 Dell M arketing 

10 Avaya Inc 

11 Avaya lnc 
12 Bath Companies 

13 Avaya lnc 

14 Dell Marketing 

15 Intermediate Tec hnologies 

Revenues 

Check 
Number 

16 Bossier Parish SheriffDepartment 

17 Bossier Parish SheriffDepartmen t 

18 Bossier Parish Sheriff Departmen t 

19 Bossier Parish Community College 

20 Bellalre Baptist Church 

21 Jack and Judy Hicks 

22 Bossier Parish SheriffDepartment 

23 Bossier Parish Sheriff DeparWaent 

24 Bossier Parish Sheriff Departrnent 

25 Bossier P~ist~ SkeriffDepartruent 

26 City of Bns sier 

27 Bossier Parish SheriffDepartment 

28 Louisiana Downs 

29 City of Bossier 

30 Department of Public Safety-P&M S 

79543 

79715 

79862 

81691 

84071 

84945 

85165 

86061 

79515 

79720 

80016 

81609 

81999 

85707 

86404 

n of 

Copy Paper 

Computer Cartridges an d Computer 
Ribbon 

Easy Grade Pro netsites 

Reading Books 

Supplies for Family Consumer 
Science Class 

Sol, war e Programs 
Sottware Program s for 2"a and 3rd 

grade 

Real Care Baby Package 

Laptop and desktop computers 

Phone systems 

Phone systems 

Tissues, Paper towels and 
workstation 

Phone systems 

Computer 

TV. Projector, Cart and Cables 

Reference 
Number 

16672 

16804 

16934 

44064 

4664 

6163 

17019 

17171 

16512,16523 

16699 

55538 

16512 

44435 

54277 

244887 

Descriptiqn of Receipt 

Ad valorem taxes 

Ad valorem taxes 

Ad valorem taxes 

Rental for school 

Rental for building 

Lan d lease 

Revenue sharing 

Revenue sharing 

Ad valorem taxes 

Revenue sharing 

Sales taxes 
Ad valorem taxes 

Lan d lease 

Gaming money 

Sales taxes 

No exceptions were found as a resuR of applying procedure l 

Type of Expenditure 
Classification 

General Fund lnstmcftou 

General Fund Instruction 

General Fund Instruction 

General Fund lnstmction 

General Fund Instruction 

General Fund instruction 

General Fund Instruction 

General Fund Instruction 

General Fund Equipment 

General Fund Equipment 

General Fund Equipment 

General Fund Eqalpmeut 

General Fund Equipment 

General Fund Equipment 

General Fund Equipment 

Type of Revenue 
Classification 

Local Taxmion Revenue 

Local Taxation Revenue 

Local Tax~ion Revenue 

Local Eam iugson Investmentin 
Real Property 

Local Earnings on Investmem in 
Real Property 

Local Earnings on Investm ent in 
Real Property 

State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 

State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 

Local Tax ation Revenue 

State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 

Sales Tax 
Local Taxation Revenue 

Local Taxation Revenue 

Local Tax ation Revenue 

Sales Tax  



Education Levels of Public School Staff (Schedule 2) 

2. W e agreed the total number of full-time classroom teachers from the schedule "Experience of Public 

Principals, Assistant Principals, and Full-time Classroom Teachers" (Schedule 4) to the combined 
total number of full-time classroom teachers as presented in Schedule 2 and to School Board payroll 
records as of October 1, 2001. 

3. W e agr eed the combined total of principals and assistant principals from th e schedule "Experience of 

Public Principals, Assistant Principals, and Full-time Classroom Teachers" (Schedule 4) to the 
combined total of principals and assistant principals as presented in Schedule 2. 

4. W e selected a judgmental sample of 25 teachers from a list of full-time teachers, principals, and 
as sistant principals by classification as of October 1, 2001, utilized in preparing Schedule 2, and 
compared the individual's education level on the list to the individual's personnel file. 

Sam ple selected: 

1 Golihar, Deborah 

2 Bartee, Luther 

3 M ilner, David 

4 Stauberry, M ichaela St. Andre 

5 Bryant, Kelly 

6 Hollingsworth, Brian 

7 Larmar, Deloris 

8 Streetman , Terrie 

9 Ross, Lori Cavin 

10 Rowlan d, Joan  Lynn Hunt 

11 Tidwell, Cynthia Silos 

12 Padgett, Rose 

13 Rogers, Am an da E. Harris 

14 Greene, M ichael 

15 Daughtry, Paul J. 

16 M arston, W ill 

17 Stewart, Renee 

18 Elston, Geneva 

19 Elledge, Shirley F. 

20 Germany, Raymond 

21 Stoppleworth, Lily 

22 Adam s, Deborah 

23 Andrus, Christina 

24 Barton, An dr ea 

25 M ontgomery, Allison 

N o exceptions were found as a result of applying procedures 2, 3, and 4 

Number and Type of Public Schools (Schedule 3) 

5. W e compared a list of schools by type utilized in preparing Schedule 3 to the schools and grade 
levels as reported on the Title 1 Grants to Local Educational Agencies (CFDA 84.010) application 
and/or the National School Lunch Program (CFDA 10.555) application. 

No exceptions were found as a result of applying procedure 5. 

Experience of Public Principals, Assistant Principals, and Full-time Classroom Teachers (Schedule 4) 

6. Utilizing th e same sam ple of 25 teachers as in procedure 4, we compared th e individual's experience 
level on the list described in procedure 4 to the individual's personnel file. 

N o exceptions were found as a result of applying procedure 6. 



Public School Staff Data (Schedule 5) 

7. W e traced a judgmental sample of 25 teachers selected from a list of all classroom teachers, which 
included their base salary, extra compensation, and ROTC or rehired retiree status as well as full- 
time equivalent status, from which Schedule 5 was prepared and compared the individual's salary, 
extra compensation, and full-time equivalent status to a payroll report included in the individual's 
personnel file. 

Sam ple selected: 

Nam e 

1 Golibar, Deborah 
2 Bartee, Luther 

3 M ilner, David 

4 Stanberry, M ichaela St. Andre 

5 Bryant, Kelly 
6 Hollingsworth, Brian 
7 Larm ar, Deloris 

8 Streemaan, Terrie 

9 Ross, Lori Cavin 
10 Rowlan d, Joan Lynn Hunt 

11 Tidwell, Cynthia Silas 

12 Padgett, Rose 
13 Rogers, Am an da E. Harris 

14 Greene, M ichael 

15 Daughtry, Paul J. 

16 M arston, W ill 

17 Stewart, Renee 

18 Elston, Geneva 

19 Elledge, Shirley F. 

20 Germ any, Raym ond 

2l Stoppleworth, Lily 

22 Adam s, Deborah  
23 Andrus, Christina 

24 Barton, Andr ea 
25 M ontgom ery , Allison 

8. W e recalculated the average salaries and full-time equivalents reported in Schedule 5 from the list 
described in procedure 7. 

No exceptions were found as a result of applying procedures 7 and 8 

Class Size Characteristics (Schedule 6) 

9. W e obtained a list of classes by school, school type, and class size from which Schedule 6 was 
prepared, agreed the school type classifications to the list from which Schedule 3 was prepared, an d 
agreed the classification on this list for a judgmental sample of 10 classes to the October I, 2001 roll 
books for th e selected clas ses. 

Sam ple selected: 

School 

1. Airline High School 
2. Apollo Elem entary 
3. Bellaire Elementary 
4. Benton Elementary 
5. Benton High School 

6. Bossier High  School 
7. Cenlral Park Elementary 
8. Curtis Elem entary 

9. Greenacres M iddle 

10. Haugh ton High School 

Teacher 

Steven Gann 
M argaret W olf 
Stephanie Cockrell 
Velma Hines 

James Kirk 
Karrie Doctor 
Tracy Lan gdon 
Penny Torrey 
Am y Gates 

Amy Ferguson 

Course Code 

150802 
120300 

700010 
160300 
150802 

120332 
700010 
120300 
120311 

160311 



The list of classes by school, school type, and class size from which Schedule 6 was prepared was 
from the "Louisian a Department of Education Annual School Report - Class Size Data for School 
Year 2001-2002". This report listed class sizes for each school in total rather than  by individual 
classes. In order to obtain our sample, we obtained a detail of individual classes by teacher by 
school from the Louisiana State Department of Education. To ensure this detail agreed to the 
"Louisiana Department of Education Annual School Report - Class Size Data for School Year 2001- 
2002" from which Schedule 6 was prepared, the School Board reconciled the information for th e ten 
schools selected from the state's detail to the "Louisiana Department of Education Annual School 
Report- Class Size Data for School Year 2001-2002". No exceptions were noted. 

Of th e ten roll books selected, we received five original roll books, two copies of roll books, and 
three computer roll book printouts for th ose classes maintained on computer software. No 
exceptions were noted. 

Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP) for the 21st Century (Schedule 7) 

10. W e agreed the summation of test scores as reported in Schedule 7 to the summation of test scores 
provided by th e State of Louisian a as testing authority. 

No exceptions were found as a result of applying procedure 10 

The Graduation Exit Exam for the 21st Century (Schedule 8) 

1 l. W e agr eed the summ ation of test scores as reported in Schedule 8 to the summation of test scores 
provided by the State of Louisiana as testing authority. 

No exceptions were foun d as a result of applying procedure 11 

The Iowa Tests (Schedule 9) 

12. W e agr eed the summation of test scores as reported in Schedule 9 to the summation of test scores 
provided by the State of Louisiana as testing authority. 

N o exceptions were found as a result of applyin g proc edure 12 

W e were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an examination, the objective of which would be the 
expression of an opinion on man agement's as sertions. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
Had we perform ed additional procedures, other matters m ight have come to our attention that would have 
been reported to you. 

Th is report is intended solely for the use of man agement of Bossier Parish School Board, th e Louisiana 
Department of Education, the Louisian a Legislature, an d the Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana, and 
should not be used by those who have not agreed to the procedures an d taken responsibility for the 
sufficiency of the procedures for th eir purposes. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is 
distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

N ovem ber 1, 2002 



 

Schedule 1 
BO SSIER PARISH  SCH O O L BOARD 

Benton, Louisiana 

General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and Certain Local Revenue Sources 

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2002 

General Fund instructional and equipment expenditures: 
General Fund instructional expenditures: 
Teacher and stu dent interaction activities: 
Classroom teacher salar ies 
Other instru ctional staff salaries 
Instructional staff employee benefits 
Purchased professional and technical services 
Instructional m aterials mad supplies 
Instructional equipm ent 

Total teacher an d stu dent interaction activities 

Other instructional activities 

Pupil support activities 
Less: equipment for pupil support activities 

Net pupil support activities 

Instructional staff services 
Less: equipment for instructional staff serv ices 

Net instructional staff activities 

Total General Fund instru ctional expenditu res 

Total General Fund instructional equipment expenditures 

D ata 

40,761,860 
4,433,377 
14,376,463 

24,462 
2,376,913 
667,843 

62,640,918 

169,717 

4,119,083 

4,119,083 

5,095,390 

5.095.390 

72,025,108 

1,036,217 

N ote: 
This schedule includes General Fund instructional and equipment expenditures. This data is presented 
annually in the M FP 70%  Expenditure Requirement Report. 

(Continued) 



 

Schedule 1 
BO SSIER PARISH  SCH OO L BOARD 

Benton, Louisiana 

General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and Certain Local Revenue Sources (continued) 
As of an d for the year ended June 30, 2002 

Certain local revenue sources: 
Local taxation revenue: 
Constitutional ad valorem tax 
Renewable ad valorem tax 
Debt service ad valorem tax 
Up to I%  collections by the Sheriff on taxes oth er than school taxes 
Sales an d use taxes 

Total local taxation revenue 

Local earnings on investm ent in real property: 
Earnings from 16th section property 
Earnings from other real property 

Total local earn ings on investment in real property 

State revenue in lieu of taxes: 
Revenue sharing - constitutional tax  
Revenue sharing - other taxes 
Revenue sharing - excess portion 
Other revenue in lieu of taxes 

Total state revenue in lieu of taxes 

State revenue for nonpublic education: 
N onpublic textbook revenue 
Nonpublic transportation revenue 

Total state revenue for nonpublic education 

D ata 

1,459,720 
15,787,364 
1,638,687 
396,401 

22,450,840 

41,733,012 

N ote: 
This schedule includes local taxation revenue, earnings on investm ents, revenue in lieu of taxes, 
and nonpublic textbook and tran sportation revenue. This data is used in the M inimum Foundation 
Program (MFP) formula. 

See accom panying independent accountants' report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 

5,567 

5,567 

233,217 
329,928 

563.145 

3,145 

3.145 



BO SSIER PARISH SCH O OL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Education Levels of Public School Staff 

As of October 1, 2001 

Schedule 2 

Full-time Classroom Teachers Principals and Assistant Principals 

Certificated Un-certifieated Certificated Un-certificated 

Category Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

Less than a Bachelor's Degree 6 0.58%  I0 9.90% 0 0.00%  0 0.00% 

Bachelor's Degree 681 65.54% 83 82.18% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 

M aster's Degree 209 20.12% 5 4.95% 23 31.94% 0 0.00% 

M aster's Degree + 30 140 13.47%  3 2.97% 48 66.67% 0 0.00% 

Specialist in Education 1 0.10% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 

Ph.D. or Ed.D. 2 0.19% 0 0.00%  1 1.39%  0 0.00% 

Total 1039 100.00% 101 100.00% 72 100.00% 0 0.00% 

Notes: 

( 1 ) This schedule provides the number and percentage of full-time classroom teachers, differentiating those having 
a teaching certificate and th ose without a teaching certificate, as well as th e number an d percentage of full-tim e 

classroom teachers an d th e num ber an d percentages of principals and assistant principals with education levels. 

(2) Full-time classroom teachers, employed as of October 1, are def'med with Louisiana Accounting and Uniform 
Governmental Handbook (LAUGH) guidelines as having an Object Code of 112 and an accompanying function 
code within the 1000 series and as signed teaching responsibilities th at comprise more th an 50% of th e individuals 

duties. 

(3) Principals an d assistant principals, employed as of October 1, are defined in accordance with LAUGH guidelines 
as having an object code of 111 with an accompanying function code of 2410 an d 2420. These employees are 
concerned with directing and man aging the operation of a particular school. If the principal or assistant principal 
is also assigned teaching responsibilities that comprise m ore than  50% of his or her duties, then the principal 

should be included in the count as a classroom teacher. 

(4) Certificated Teachers / Principals / Assistant Principals: Teaching certificates are issued to those qualified 
professionals authorized to teach or perform designated duties in the schools under the jurisdiction of the 
Louisian a State Board of Elementary an d Secondary Education based on their completion of an approved 

teac her education program an d all other legal requirements. These requirements are referred to in the Louisian a 
Stan dar ds for State Certification of School Personnel - Bulletin 746 published by th e State Departm ent of 

Education. 

See accompanying independent accountants' report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 



Type 

BO SSIER PARISH SCH O OL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Number and Type of Public Schools 

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2002 

Elementary Schools 

M iddle/Junior High Schools 

High Schools 

Combination Schools 

Total 

Num ber 

17 

7 

10 

2 

36 

Schedule 3 

N otes: 

(1) This schedule includes the number of elementary, middle/junior high, secondary (High ) and 
combination schools in operation ddring the fiscal year. Th is data is currently reported to the 
Louisiana Legislature in the Annual Financial and Statistical Report (AFSR). 

(2) Elementary School - Any school whose grade structure falls within the ran ge PK-8 and does not 
fit th e definition for M iddle/Jun ior High School. 

(3) M iddle/Junior High School - Any school whose grade structure within the ran ge 4-9, includes 
grades 7 or 8, and excludes PK-3 and 10-12. 

(4) High School - Any school whose grade structure falls within the range 6-12 and includes grades 
in 10-12 range, or any school that includes only gr ade 9. 

(5) Combination School - Any school whose grade structure falls within the ran ge PK-12 and is not 
described by any of the above definitions. Th ese schools generally contain some grades in the 

K-6 ran ge and som e grades in the 9-12 ran ge. Examples include grade structures such as K-12; 

K-3 plus 9-12; and 4-6 plus 9-12. Non-graded schools (schools with no grade structure) are also 
considered com bination schools. 

See accom pan ying independent accountants' report on applying agr eed-upon procedures. 



 

BO SSIER PARISH SCH O OL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Experience of Public Principals, Assistant Principals, and Full-tim e Classroom Teachers 

As of October 1, 2001 

Schedule 4 

Total Years Experience 
Category 0-I 2-3 4-10 11-14 15-19 20-24 25 + Total 

Principals m  3 3 9 9 14 38 

Assistant Principals 0 0 0 2 13 19 34 

Classroom Teachers 129 120 317 133 133 120 188 1140 

Total 129 120 320 136 144 142 221 1212 

Notes: 

( 1 ) This schedules includes the number of public school principals, assistant principals and full time classroom 
teachers grouped by varying years of experience in the teaching profession. Selective criteria for employees 

reported on this schedule are (a) be employed as of October 1, (2) have job responsibilities within their 
assigned classification that comprise more than 50% of the individual's job duties, and (3) meet the definitions 
contained within the LAUGH for their respective job classification. 

(2) Principals and assistant principals, employed as of October 1, are defined in accordan ce with LAUGH guidelines 
as having an object code of 111 with an accompanying function code of 2410 and 2420. Th ese employees are 
concern ed with directing and man aging th e operation of a particular school. If th e principal or as sistant 

principal is also as signed teaching responsibilities that comprise more than  50%  of his or her duties, th en the 

principal should be included in the count as a clas sroom teacher. 

See accom pan ying independent accountants' report on applying agr eed-upon procedures. 



BO SSIER PARISH  SCH O OL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Public School Staff Data 

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2002 

Average classroom teacher's salary 

including extra compensation 

Average classroom teacher's salary 
excluding extra com pensation 

All 

Classroom 

Teachers 

Schedule 5 

Classroom Teachers 

Excluding R OTC 

and Rehired Retirees 

$37,075.11 $36,844.50 

$36,265.93 $36,030.24 

Number of teacher full-time equivalents (FTEs) 
used in computation of average salaries 1,116.46 1,100.10 

N ote: 

(1) This schedule depicts the full-time equivalent (FTE) and calculated average salaries (with and 
without extra compensation) for all classroom teachers and for all classroom teachers excluding 
ROTC an d rehired retirees. The schedule reflects district staff data reported to the Louisian a 

Department of Education in the End-of-Year Profile of Education Personnel (PEP) Report, 
which is subsequently reported to the Legislature in the AFSR. The data excludes day-tu -day 

substitu tes and temporary employees. 

See accom panying independent accountants' report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 



BOSSIER PARISH  SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Class Size Characteristics 

As of October 1, 2001 

Schedule 6 

Class Size Range 

1-20 21 - 26 27 - 33 34 + 

Category Percent Num ber Percent Num ber Percent Num ber Percent Num ber 

Elementary 33.74%  276 39.61%  324 26.65%  218 

Elem entary Activity 11.22%  22 23.47% 46 32.14%  63 33.17%  65 

M iddle/Jr. High 21.48%  218 42.36%  430 36.16%  367 0 

M iddle/Jr. High Activity 16.26% 33 17.24% 35 31.03% 63 35,47% 72 

High 53.38%  1107 23.77%  493 22.85%  474 

High  Activity 42.08% 85 19.80% 40 15.84% 32 22.28% 45 

Com bination 100.00% 40 

Note: 
The Louisiana Board of Elementary and Secondary Education has set specific lim its on the maximum 

size of classes at various grade levels. The m ax im um  enrollment in grades K-3 is 26 students and 

m axim um enrollment in grades 4-12 is 33 students. These limits do not apply to activity classes such as 

physical education, chorus, band, an d other classes with out maximum enrollm ent standar ds. Therefore, 

these classes are included only as separate line item s. 

See accom panying independent accountants' report on applying agreed-upon procedures 



 

BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP 21 ) for the 21 st Century 
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2002 

Schedule 7 

English Language Arts M athematics 

4th Grade 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000 

Students Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

Advanced 90 5.9%  19 1,2% 24 1.6%  47 3.1% 32 2.0% 24 1.6%  

Proficient 368 24.0% 336 21.3% 298 20.2%  206 13.4% 232 14.7%  198 13.4% 

Basic 626 40.8% 736 46.8% 633 42.8% 694 45.2%  719 45.7%  706 47.8%  

Approaching Basic 350 22.8% 312 19.8% 339 22.9% 368 24.0% 363 23.1% 282 19.1% 

Unsatisfactory 100 6.5%  172 10.9% 184 12.5% 219 14.3% 229 14.5% 268 18.1%  

Total 1,534 1,575 1,478 1,534 1,575 1,478 

Science Social Studies 

4th Grade 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000 

Studen~ Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Pereen 

Advan ced 83 5.4%  40 2.5% 18 1,2% 36 2.3% 20 1.3% 8 0.5%  

Proficient 202 13.2% 248 15.8% 267 18.1% 157 10,2% 187 11.9% 216 14.6% 

Basic 752 49.0% 698 44.3% 679 46.0% 782 51.1% 796 50.5% 725 49.1% 

Approaching Basic 378 24.7% 458 29.1% 368 24.9% 376 24.6% 342 21.7% 333 22.6% 

Unsafis factory 118 7.7% 131 8.3% 145 9.8% 181 11.8% 230 14.6% 194 13.2% 

Total 1,533 1,575 1,477 1,532 1,575 1,476 

Note: 
This schedule represents student performance testing data an d district summary scores for grade 4 in English Lan guage Arts, 
M athematics, Science, an d Social Stu dies. 

(Continued) 



 

BO SSIER PARISH SCH OO L BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP 21 ) for the 21 st Century (continued) 
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2002 

Schedule 7 

English Language Arts M athematics 

8th Grade 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000 

Students Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

Advanced 42 2.8% 7 0.5% 23 1.6%  29 1.9% 30 2.0%  57 3.9% 

Proficient 311 21.1% 251 17.4% 253 17.1%  66 4.2% 90 5.9%  99 6.8% 

Basic 513 34.8% 603 41.9% 607 41.0% 694 44.6% 725 47.8% 643 43.9% 

Approaching Basic 487 33.0%  428 29.8%  477 32.2% 419 27.0% 320 21.1% 328 22.4% 

Unsatisfactory 122 8.3% 150 10.4%  120 8.1% 347 22.3%  352 23.2% 336 23.0%  

Total 1,475 !,439 1,480 1,555 1,517 1,463 

Science Social Studies 

8th Grade 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000 

Studen~ Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

Advanced 19 1.3% 7 0.5%  14 1.0% 24 1.7% 13 0.9%  17 1.2% 

Proficient 332 23.1% 224 16.0% 286 19.6% 191 13.3% 198 14.1% 223 15.3% 

Basic 578 40.1% 601 42.8% 494 33.8% 732 51.0% 671 47.8% 709 48.5%  

Appro aching Basic 349 24.2% 356 25.4% 416 28.4% 295 20.5%  311 22.2%  315 21.5% 

Unsatisfactory 163 11.3%  215 15.3%  252 17.2% 194 13.5%  210 15.0%  198 13.5% 

Total 1,441 1,403 1,462 1,436 1,403 1,462 

Note: 
This schedule represents student performance tasting data and district summ ary scores for grade 8 in English Language Arts, 
M athematics, Science, an d Social Studies, 

See accompan ying independent accountants' report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 



BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

The Graduation Exit Examination for the 21 st Century (GEE 21 ) 

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2002 

Schedule 8 

English Lanean ge Arts M athematics 

10th Grade 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000 

Students Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

Advanced 27 2.0% 8 0.8%  91 6.6%  65 5.4%  __  m  

Proficient 222 16.3% 175 14.5% m  146 10.5% 183 15.1% 

Basic 569 41.8% 596 49.3% __  m  512 36.9% 492 40.7% __  m  

Approaching Basic 304 22.4% 256 21.2% 238 17.2% 176 14.6% 

Unsatisfactory 238 17.5% 174 14.4%  399 28.8% 292 24.2% 

Total 1,360 1,209 1,386 1,208 

Science Social Studies 

1 lth Grade 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000 

Students Number Percent Number Percent Num ber Percent Number Percent Num ber Percent Num ber Percent 

Advanced 34 2.9% m  11 1.0% m  __  m  

Proficient 227 19.7% 108 9.4% 

Basic 431 37.4% m  561 48.6% m  __  m  

Approaching Basic 234 20.3% __  m  237 20.5% __  i  

Unsatisfactory 227 19.7% 236 20.5% m  

Total 1,153 1,153 

Note: 
This schedule represents student performance testing data and district summ ary scores for grades 10 and 11 in 
English Lan guage Arts, M athematics, Science, and Social Studies. Testing for English Lan guage Arts an d M athem atics 
did not begin until 2001, an d testing for Science an d Social Studies did not begin until 2002. 

See accompanying independent accountan ts' report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 



BO SSIER PARISH SCH O OL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

The Iowa Tests 

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2002 

Schedule 9 

Com posite 

2002 2001 2000 

Num ber Percent Num ber Percent Num ber Percent 

Test of Basic Skills (ITBS) 

Grade 3 1,247 62.0%  1,248 62.0%  1,249 60.0%  

Grade 5 1,284 59.0% 1,155 62.0% 1,173 58.0% 

Grade 6 1,277 58.0% 1,208 57.0% 1,322 57.0% 

Grade 7 1,275 55.0% 1,322 58.0% 1,259 56.0% 

Tests of Educational Development (ITED) 

Grade 9 1,227 55.0% 1,233 57.0% 1,184 56.0% 

N ote: 
The Iowa Tests used in Louisiana are norm -referenced achievement tests that are 

standardized nationally, allowing the comparison of perform ance between students tested 

within the national sample. (Students included in the norm-referenced reports are those 
that take The Iowa Tests with out most accomm odations/modifications such as extended 

time allowan ces, etc, to the testing conditions.) 

The summ ary score reported is the National Percentile Rank, showing relative position 
or rank as compared to a large representative sam ple of students in the sam e grade 

from th e entire nation. 

See accom pan ying independent accountants' report on applying agr eed-upon procedures 



333 Texas Street, Suite 1900 

Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Novem ber 1, 2002 

The M embers of the Bossier Parish School Board 
Benton, Louisiana: 

W e have audited the f'mancial statements of the Bossier Parish School Board (School Board) for the year 
ended June 30, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated November 1, 2002. In planning an d 
perform ing our audit of the financial statements of th e School Board, we considered internal control in 
order to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the finan cial 
statements. An audit does not include examining th e effectiveness of internal control an d does not provide 
assurance on intern al control. W e have not considered internal eontro'l since th e date of our report. 

Durin g our audit, we noted certain m atters involving internal control an d other operational m atters that ar e 
presented for your consideration. These comments and recommendations, all of which have been discussed 
with the appropriate members of man agement, are intended to improve intern al control or result in other 
operating efficiencies and are summ ar ized as follows: 

LEGISLATIVE AUDITOR 

At the request of the School Board, the Louisian a Legislative Auditor performed a review of procedures 
and policies of the f'manee departm ent, as  well as four other areas of concern . The Legislative Auditor 
published a report, dated July 10, 2002, to report their findings and management's response an d corrective 
action plan. It is our understanding th at the corrective actions are in th e process of being implemented in 
fiscal 2003. W e encourage the School Board to ensur e all corrective actions are implemented. 

M A INFRAM E ACCESS CONTRO LS 

Security Awareness - The user security awareness program  has been limited. It consists of an  acceptable 
network usage policy an d a quarterly request for users to chan ge their mainframe password. Plans are to 
widen th e awareness program  with inform ation provided at the month ly Principals meeting. M ost lapses in 
computer security result from a lack of user awareness. Typically, users are not able to define questionable 
activity, and a more comprehensive security awareness program would help mitigate the risk of security 
lapses. 

IIII a member of KPMG Ir:erratlonal 8 8wls 8ss(~ ,~t,or~ 



The M embers of the Bossier Parish School Board 
Novem ber 1, 2002 
Page 2 

Th e purpose of the policy a~ld awareness program s is to protect the school, employees, and students. W e 
recommend the School Board implement more informative communication with all employees to stress the 
importance of security and inform users of th e proper reporting process at the month ly Principals meeting. 
W e also recommend the School Board continue to review and update their Network Usage Policy an d 
ensure the policy is explicit as to prohibited actions an d related consequences for th e occurrence of 
prohibited actions. Further, we recommend the updated policy be reviewed by the School Board's attorn ey 
and/or someone knowledgeable on such policies. 

NETW ORK  ACCESS CONTROLS 

The network that is used to carry the sensitive information on the mainframe from computer to computer is 
th e same physical and logical network that is used by all levels of School Board employees as well as  
students. The risk associated with one network for all computers is that it could allow someone with 
lim ited or no access to capture sensitive School Board information, including gr ades, payroll data, and 
other inform ation that is available on the mainframe. This type of "data capture" is possible from any 
networked computer in th e School Board and therefore provides an intruder th e ability to act with  lim ited 
risk of being discovered. Th is same process can be used to gain mainfram e passwords, leading to 
unauth orized access of mainfram e resources and data. These activities are easily accomplished with the 
assistance of data capture and terminal emulation tools widely available on the Internet. 

W e recommend netw ork segmentation to ensure th at th e separate netw ork used to carry the sensitive 
information on the mainfram e from computer to computer is not the sam e physical an d logical netw ork that 
is used by all levels of School Boar d employees as well as stu dents. 

DATA CONTROL AND INTEGRITY 

Chan ges to th e inform ation contained in the mainfram e are not logged for validation, verification, or future 
review. Changes may go undetected an d if detected, the source of th e changes will be undeterm inable. W e 
noted that there is no lraeking of any chan ges made to the information in the School Board's mainframe. 
Th is may make it more difficult to track questionable transactions or other suspicious activity. Plan s are 
underway to upgrade to the newest version of payroll, accounting, and human resource softw are that would 
allow for logging on all changes. 

W e recomm end the School Boar d continue with its plans for upgrading the software an d implement the 
process of logging changes for verification or future review. 

BUSINESS CONTINUITY 

W hile there is a form al agreement with a local governmental agency to provide mainframe access in th e 
event of an emergency an d there is a documented disaster recovery plan, however the plan has not been 
tested. 

W e recommend the business continuity plan be tested to ensure that administrative and operational 
procedures surrounding the technology can reasonably assure continuity of operations. 



The M embers of the Bossier Parish School Board 
N ovem ber 1, 2002 
Page 3 

RECONCILIATION OF CASH RE CEIPTS LO G TO ACTUAL DEPOSITS 

The School Board has a process of reconciling items entered on the Cash Receipts Log to th e Cash 
Receipts register in order to ensure all amounts entered onto the log were ultimately deposited. During a 
review of this reconciliation process, we noted some areas in which it could be improved. As we 
recommended in our prior year management letter, we recommend the process be improved by having 
someone independent of the process review the reconciliation each month to ensure the reconciliation is 
done accurately, totals on the log agree to the ledger, and that all reconciling items are dealt with 
appropriately. 

UNIFORM  UN CLAIM ED PROPERTY A CT O F 1997 

The Uniform Unclaimed Property Act of 1997 (LSA-R.S. 9:151 - 181) appears to apply to both property 
and for wages or oth er compensation for personal services which is deemed abandoned one year after th e 
property becomes distributable or th e compensation becomes payable. Assuming that the Act applies to 
th ese item s, the School Boar d is required to report th e property and pay funds equal to the value of the 
property to the Secretary of th e Louisian a Departm ent of Revenue on an annual basis. 

One situation which school boards encounter fairly frequently, and which may fall under th e provisions of 
the Act, involves old outstanding checks. Both vendor and payroll checks, which have been outstanding for 
more than one year from the date of issuance, appear to meet th e definition of aban doned property under 
th e Act. Annually, these checks would be reported an d th e funds remitted to the Secretary of th e Louisian a 
Departm ent of Revenue in accordance with the Act. They could not be voided and th e cash returned to the 
book balan ces. 

There may be situations other th an  old outstanding checks to which the School Board should consider 
whether or not th e Act would apply. 

Dur ing th e year , the School Board consulted with legal counsel an d determined to attempt to follow-up on 
all outstanding checks prior to submitting the checks to th e state. Yet, as of end of fieldwork, the aged 
outstanding checks remained on the School Board's books. 

W e recomm end th ese outstanding checks be quickly resolved and fimds remitted to the state, if applicable. 
Also, the School Board should begin repotting on an annual basis an y abandoned property an d remitting 
funds to the Secretary of the Louisian a Department of Revenue in accordan ce with th e Act. 

SEGRE GATION OF DUTIES 

Currently th e Payroll Department , in addition to the Personnel Department, has access to add new 
employees to th e system or make chan ges to employee data. To maintain proper segregation of duties, the 
Payroll Departm ent should not have th is level of access. 
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CHILD NU TRITION PUR CH A SES 

Currently within the Child Nutrition Program (CNP), the cash disbursement process is segregated from the 
cash disbursement process in the Accounting Department of the School Board Central Office. In the CNP, 
one person is responsible for verifying invoices, preparing and printing checks

, and perform ing the bank 
account reconciliation. W e also noted there is no formal purchase order approval process for 
nonfood/nonkitchen supply purchases in th e CNP; the approval process is inform al. 

W e recommend that the School Board centralize the cash disbursem ent function of th e CNP with that of 
the School Board's Central Office. Additionally, we recommend that th e purchase order approval process 
be form alized where supervisor approval ofnonfoodlnonk itchen supply purchases is properly documented

. 

AVERAGE DALLY ATTENDANCE DATA 

W e recom mend the Finance Department maintain adequate documentation to support all am ounts on the 
Impact A id application. 

ADU LT I~DU CATION 

During our review of the depreciation calculations for a sample of items
, we noted differences in 

reconciling the depreciation expense to the accumulated depreciation. W hile these differences were 
immaterial, we recommend the School Board implement a process to reconcile depreciation expense and 
accumulated depreciation to ensure th at no significant differences exist. 

Our audit procedures are design ed primarily to enable us to form an opinion on the financial statements
, 

and therefore may not bring to light all weaknesses in policies or procedures that may exist. W e aim, 
however, to use our  knowledge of the School Board's organization gained during our work to make 
comments and suggestions th at we hope will be useful to you. W e would be pleased to discuss th ese 
comments and recommendations with you at any time. 
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the members of the School Board, 
m anagement, and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than th ese specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 



333Texas Street, Suite 1900 

Shrevepo~,LA 71101-3692 

Independent Accountants' Report 
on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

M em bers of the Bossier Parish School Board 
Benton, Louisiana: 

W e have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by th e Bossier Parish School 
Board solely to assist the Bossier Parish School Board in evaluating th e effectiveness of the School 
Board's complian ce with Act 743 of 1995 concerning the Bossier Educational Excellence Fund (BEEF) (a 
permanent trust fund of the Bossier Parish School Board) for the year ended June 30, 2002. Management is 
responsible for the Bossier Parish School Board's compliance with th ose requirements. This agreed-upon 
procedures engagement was performed in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American  Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The suffi ciency of th ese procedures is solely the 
responsibility of the Bossier Parish School Board. Consequently, we make no representation regarding th e 
suffi ciency of th e procedures described below either for the purpose for which th is report has been 
requested or for an y other purpose. 

Procedures: 

1. Obtained th e balan ces an d a summ ary of the activity of the BEEF fu nds from th e School Board as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2002 (Attachment 1). 

Selected all twelve months receipts from th e BEEF general ledger, totaling $1,579,536, or 100% of 
total fees collected from each riverboat during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, and agr eed these 
amounts to schedules received from the riverboats (LSA-R.S. 27:93). 
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Sam ple selected 

M onth 

July 2001 
August 2001 
September 2001 
October 2001 
November 2001 
Decem ber 2001 
January 2001 
February 2001 
M arch 2001 
April 2001 
M ay 2001 
June 2001 

Isle of 
Capri 

25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25.000 

H orseshoe 

25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25.000 

Casino 
M agic H ollywood 

14,963 
16,381 
13,880 
14,232 
14,145 
15,092 
13,753 
15,500 
15,294 
12,988 
13,471 
13.073 

74,083 $ 
65,867 
64,002 
58,160 
63,482 
61,278 
64,119 
67,310 
76,501 
75,305 
69,790 
66.867 

Total 

139 046 
132 248 
127 882 
122 392 
127 627 
126 370 
127 872 
132 810 
141.795 
138293 
133,261 
129.940 

$ 300,000 300,000 172,772 806,764 $ 1,579,536 

Judgrnentally selected seven receipts from the BEEF general ledger covering four months during th e 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, an d totaling $9,764, or 53% of total fees collected from the horse 
racing facility and confirmed those receipts with the horse racing facility and compared to supporting 
schedule received from the horse racing facility (LSA-R.S. 4:163.1D). 

Sample selected: 

Date Check Number Am ount 

7/26/01 

7/19/01 

8/9/01 

8/16/01 

9/6/01 

9/27/01 

11/1/01 

44435 

44293 

44728 

44854 

45226 

45524 

46230 

1,353.95 

1,324.34 

1,193.41 

1,027.35 

1,577.55 

2,100.69 

1,187.18 

3. Agreed the amounts selected in 2. to deposits recorded in the BEEF general ledger (LSA-R.S 
17:408.2B). 

4. Agreed the amount of investments in the BEEF general ledger for the year ended June 30
, 2002 to a 

listing of investm ents in either direct obligations of the United States government
, time certificates of 

deposit of state banks organ ized un der the laws of Louisian a, or national banks having their principal 
office in Louisiana (LSA-R.S. 17:408.2B). 

Agr eed the amount of interest earnings in the BEEF general ledger for th e year ended June 30, 2002 to 
third party statements (LSA-R.S. 17:408.2B). 
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6. Agreed the total cash and investnrents in th e BEEF general ledger as of June 30
, 2002 to a schedule 

prepared by the School Boar d reflecting the amount of principal an d earnings available for spending 

(LSA-R.S. 17:408.2B and 2C). 

7. Compared the withdrawal of earnings from the BEEF account beginning in January 2002 to the income 
for the prior calendar year per the BEEF general ledger. 

8. Obtained a list of the activity of the BEEF funds (Attachment 2). From this detail, we judgmentally 
selected twenty-five disbursements, totaling $117,299 or 24% of total BEEF disbursements for fiscal 
2002 (Attachment 3), and agreed the expenditure amount to a third party invoice. 

Findings: 

1. No exceptions noted. 

2. N o exceptions noted. The Bossier Parish School Board agr eed to accept a fixed an nual am ount in lieu 
of a passenger-boar ding fee from tw o of the riverboats in Bossier Par ish

, Horseshoe and Isle of Capri. 
Based on an  agr eement between th e parties, Casino M agic pays a percentage of gr oss revenue to th e 
City of Bossier of which the School Board receives 6% . Lastly, the School Board began receiving 
.5375% of net gaming proceeds from Hollywood Casino who began operations during the current 
year . The School Board has no binding agr eement with the Hollywood Casino concerning th e 
paym ent of these m onies. 

The School Board has no controls in place to monitor the accuracy of the am ounts being paid by 
Casino M agic, Hollywood Casino, or Louisian a Downs. The School Board should consider 
implementing procedures to ensure the accuracy of amounts received from th ese entities. 

As mentioned above, the School Board has no binding contract in place with Hollywood Casino 
concerning the paym ent of gam ing taxes. Beginning in 1997, negotiations began  for the total "tax" to 
be paid by th e Hollywood Casino to the various local governm ents. Alth ough there has been much 
correspondence betw een th e interested parties, no contract betw een th e casino and the various 
governm ents has been executed. Thus, no final determ ination of gam ing revenues to be rem itted to the 
local governments was ever established. In December 2000, the Superintendent began  efforts to 
obtain such a contract. As of November 2002, a signed contract had not yet been obtained. 

3. N o exceptions noted. 

4. N o exceptions noted. W hile the School Board keeps accoun t of the earnings on the BEEF separately 
from th e fund principal, these funds are recorded in one fund. W e suggest the School Board consider 
establishing a separate fund to account for the expenditure of the earnings on BEEF. 

5. N o exceptions noted. 

6. N o exceptions noted. 

7. N o exce ptions noted. 
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The list of activity in Attachment 2 does not agree to Attachment 1 because of $784 of receivables 
from various schools reflected on Attachm ent 2 that were not recorded in the general ledger. Of the 
item s selected for inspection, the support for the following did not contain sufficient third party 

support for the expenditure or an explanation justifying the expenditure as educational enhancement: 

D eserintion of Purchase 

Star Early Literacy Sehoolwide 
License Kit 

Purpose 

Accelerated reading program licens e requirements 
for computer stations 

10 Surge Protectors, 6 extension Unknown 
cords 

Partnership with Bossier Arts Council 

D .A .R.E. 

BPCC Ist Grade Play 

5t~ Grade Symphony 

Junior Achievem ent 

Louisiana Folk M usic Presentation 

Laser printer cartridges 

Visual Arts progr am  

Annual Board allotm ent to D.A.R.E. progr am  

Contract with Cavalier Players to put on play for all 
1st gr ades 

Attendance fee for presentation 

Payment to agency for presenting free enterprise 
curriculum 

Payment for services provided to 8t~ gr ade social 
studies classes for Louisian a Folk M usic. Full 
cost was $4,960, but $1,453 not covered by 
gr an t. 

Laser printer cartridges for autom ated library 
inventory system printer 

Am ount 

3,689.53 

723.78 

7,000.00 

6,500.00 

3,000.00 

3,936.00 

3,000.00 

1,453.45 

170.98 

W e were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an examination, the objective of which would be the 
expression of an opinion on the effectiveness of the School Board's compliance with Act 743 of 1995 

concerning the Bossier Educational Excellence Fund (a nonexpendable trust fund of the Bossier Parish 
School Board) for the year ended June 30, 2002. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Had we 
perform ed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention th at would have been 
reported to you. 

This report is intended solely for th e information an d use of the specified users referred to in the first 
par agraph of th is report an d is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than th ese 
specified parties. However, th is report is a matter of public record an d its distribution is not lim ited, 

November 1, 2002 



BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOAR D 
Benton, Louisiana 

Balance Sheet - Bossier Educational Excellence 
Nonexpendable Trust Fund 

June 30, 2002 
(Unan dited) 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents: 
Held at Tri-State Ban k and Trust 
Held at Citizens National Ban k 
United States Treas ury obligations 

Investments - United States Treasury obligations 
Receivables 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Interfund payable 

Total liabilities 

Fund balance - reserved for instructional enhancement 

Tota l fund balan ce 

Total liabilities and fund balan ce 

Attachm ent 1 

125,000 
174,037 
575,000 

8,424,375 
237,752 

$ 9,536,164 

$ 140,049 
3,267 

143,316 

9,392,848 

9,392,848 

$ 9,536,164 

(Continued) 



BOSSIER PARISH SCH OOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Statem ent of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings - 
Bossier Educational Excellence - Nonexpendable Trust Fund (Continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2002 
(Unaudited) 

Operating revenue: 
Fees: 
H orseshoe Casino 
Isle of Capri Casino 
Casino M agic 
Hollywood Cas ino 
Louisiana Downs, Inc. 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses - instruction 

Operating incom e 

Nonoperating revenue - investment incom e 

N et incom e 

Retained earnings at beginning of year 

Retained earnings at end of year 

See accompanying independent accountants' report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 

Attachm ent 1 

$ 300,000 
300,000 
172,773 
806,763 
18,393 

1,597,929 

485.987 

1,111,942 

207.629 

1,319,571 

8,073,277 

$ 9,392,848 



AMine High 

BEEF 
EXPENDITURE DETAIL 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 

VENDOR AM OUNT 

In Focus Systems 
In Focus Systems 
Dell Computers 
Dell Computers 
Dell Computers 
Dell Computers 
Hank's Comp. 
Reimbursement 
Airline High 
Dell Computers 
Airline High 
Airline High 
Hank's Comp. 
Dell Computers 

4,018.00 
413.00 

8,608.00 
160.00 
160.00 
464.00 
1,850.00 
-135.00 
1,456.38 
8,332.58 
367.15 

2,520.00 
lOt.O0 
224.28 

DESCRIPTION 

Projector 
Projector Bulb 
8 Computers 

Computer equipment 

Reimb. For Purchases from School Acct 
7 Computers, 1 Laser Jet Printer 
Reimb. For Purchases from School Aect 
geimb. For Purchases from School Acct 
Computer Equipment 
4 128M B M odules 

Al~[lo Elementary Dell Computers 9,134.20 7 Computers, 2 Scanners, 5 Printers 

Bellaire Elementary 

Benton Elementary 

Benton High 

Bossier Achievement Center 

Bossier Elementary 

Bossier High 

Dell Computers 
Dell Computers 
Bellaire Elem. 

Hank's Comp. 

Dell Computers 
TRC 
Nat'l School 
Tom Snyder 

BAC 

Dell Computers 

Dell Computers 
Dell Computers 
W orthington 
Tri-State 
Bossier Etem . 
M aster Audio 
Dell Computers 

Creative press 
Sagebrush 
CDW -G 
Bossier High 
Bossier High 

4,325.84 4 computers 
312.00 
1,656.13 Reimb. For Purchases from School Acct 

800.00 Computer Equipment 

2,024.82 
207.85 
39.95 
53.89 

2computers 
Exteru N CD DrNe 
Soft:ware 
Books 

2,056.00 Reimb. For Purchases from School Acc~ 
4,748.00 1 Poweredge Computer 

1,152.00 
366.51 
644.82 
139.00 
48.64 
860.00 

3,530.39 

2,899.00 
1,429.88 
280.99 
474.92 

4,580.44 

Computer, Printer, Scanner 

Computer Cart 
VCR 
Reimb. For Purchases from School Acet 
M onitor/Television 
Computer Equipment 

1 Infocus LP340B 
Spectrum In.Han d 
Educational Software 
geimb. For Purchases from School Acct 
Relm b. For Pur chases from School Aect 

Attachm ent 2 
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BEEF 
EXPENDITURE DETAIL 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 

SCHOOL/PROJECT VENDOR AM OUNT 

Bossier Technical Schoo  

Butler Elementary 

Cenlml Park 

Charlotte M itchell 

Curtis Elementary 

Dell Computers 
Dell Computers 
Bossier High 
Bossier High 
Dell Computers 
TRC 
Sagebrush 
Sagebrush 

Circuit City 
M L Bath 

Office Depot 
Offi ce Depot 
Office Depot 
M ac W arehouse 
SRA-M cGraw 
Long's Elect. 
Dell Computers 
Reimbursement 

Central Park 
Dell Computers 
Reimbursement 

Dell Computers 
Dell Computers 
De ll Computers 
M aster Audio 
Rex 'IV 
Perma Bound 
Perma Bound 
Perma Bound 
Perma Boun d 
Dell Computers 
Dell Computers 
Char. M itchell 

Curtis Elem. 
Teachers Video 
Teachers Video 
CCV Software 
W ieser Ed. 
M edia Basic 
M edia Bas ic 
School Book 

5,586.00 
348.00 
405.00 
53.98 

1,170.00 
64.90 
714.25 
75.00 

6 Computers 

DESCRIPTION 

Reimb. For Purchases from School Aec t 
Reimb. For Purchases from School Aec t 
1 Computer, 1 Desk Jet Printer 
Software 
1 M inilaser Prinler 
printer Stand 

774.97 TVN CR 

723.78 Projector, Ink Cartridges, Etc. 

88.82 2 Scanners and Ink 
259.98 

1,176.99 
367.90 Scan Converter 

1,104.53 Texts and W orkbooks 
398.00 2 TV Carts 
231.80 4 Desktop switches 
-13.66 

269.00 Reimb. For Purchases from School Aect 
4,793.55 5 Computers 
-356.80 

2,034.45 
12,716.00 
638.00 

2,001.65 

179.99 
86.23 
90.95 

2,268.58 
2,427.95 
931.00 
58.00 

2,487.71 

199.95 
379.71 
33.54 

1,140.25 
206.80 
148.39 
263.95 

2,215.08 

t I Computers 

TV/VCR and Carts 
VCR 
Books 

Books 
1 Computer 

Reimb. For Purchases from School Acet 

Reimb. For Purchases from School Acat 

15 Educational Videos 

Educational Software 

Educational Videos 

Books 

Attachm ent 2 
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SCHOOL/I'ROJEC'I 

Elm Grove 

Han ghton lfigh 

Kerr Elementosy 

parkway High 

Plain Dealing Elementary 

Plain Dealing High 

Plantation Park 

BEEF 
EXPENDITURE DETAIL 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 

VENDOR AM OUNT 

Elm Gr ove 
Elm Grove 
Elm Grove 
Einslruction 
Dell Computers 
Bradford Pub. 
Tom Snyder 
Dell Computers 
Reimbursement 

Dell Computer 
Batteries Plus 
Dell Computer 
Reimbursement 

Alphasmart 
Kerr Elementary 

Dell Computers 

Dell Computers 
Dell Computers 
Library Video 
Circuit City 
Dell Computers 
Dell Computers 
Batteries Plus 
De ll Computers 
Dell Computers 
Reim bur sement 

Dell Computers 
De[[ Computers 
Dell Computers 
Ed. Resources 
Ed. Resour ces 

Advantage Learn. 
Hargadon Com. 
Renaissance 
Reimbursement 

CDW -G 

Cogent System 
Ralrabursement 
Batteries Flus 
Dell Computers 
Lakeshore 
BMI Education 
B/VII Education 

DESCRIPTION 

5,770.00 Reimb. For Purchases from School Acct 
3,984.00 Reimb. For Purchases from School Acct 
1,169.00 Reimb. For Purchases from School Acct 
2,024.00 32 Cl~sroom performance Systems 
5,934.00 6 Computers 
163.90 Software 

1,282.34 Books 
394.50 10 128M B M odules 
-229.35 

5,012.00 1Poweredge Computer 
279.00 NeffSmart700 

4,985.00 5computers 
.542.54 

7,700.00 1 SBO-PAS30-IR-RC 
190.00 Reimb. For Purchases from School Acct 

6,883.76 Computer Equipment 

6,592.00 
4,909.80 
25.45 
119.98 

4,652.00 
366.00 
279.00 

4,655.00 
290.00 
-427.15 

8 computers 

LCD Projector 
Video Tape 
VCR 
1 Poweredge Computer 

Net/Smart 700 
5 Computers 

1,134.00 Computer 
20.00 
58.00 
223.74 lastructinnal Soffware 

154.90 

219.95 Educ~wnal SoRware 
2,300.00 4 Computers 
332.00 Sofrware 

-540.11 

80.80 

777.00 
-469.00 
279.00 

4,646.00 
463.93 
53.49 
40.38 

Dual Speaker Hub 
Sotmd Cards 

Net/Smart 700 
Computer Equipment 

Attachm ent 2 
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BEEF 

EXPENDITURE DETAIL 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 

SCHOOL/PROJECT VENDOR AM OUNT 

Plait Elementary 

Princeton Elementary 

Rodes Elementary 

Rusheon M iddle 

Sun City Elementary 

W aller Elementary 

Artist in Residence 

D.A.R.E. 

Integrated Science 

Plait Elementary 
Plat~ Elementary 
Dell Computers 
Dell Computers 
Reimbursement 

Sagebrush 
Renaissance 
Dell Computers 
Reimbursement 
Knowledge 

Quill Corp. 
Dell Computers 
Audio Visual 

TD Curran Inc. 
Offi ce Depot 
Apple Computer 
TD Currun , Inc. 
Perma Bound 
Reimbursement 
Ed. Videos 
Renaissance  

M icro W arehouse 

Rusheon M iddle 
Dell Computers 

Dell Computers 
Beekly Cardy 
Offi ce Depot 
Offi ce Depot 

Sony 
DellComp~e~ 

Arts Council 

Larry Deen 

Offi ce Depo t 
Rex 

Dell Computers 
De ll Computers 
Dell Computers 
Dell Computers 

Parkway Computers Dell Computers 

DESCRIPTION 

2,311.10 Reimb. For Purchases from School Acct 
4,950.91 Reimb. For Purchases from School Acc~ 
6,517.00 7 Computers 
406.00 

-606.00 

1,429.88 
2,284.95 
4,206.00 
-274.83 
168.28 
779.74 

4,945.00 
773.95 

1,535.35 
560.32 

4,970.00 

621.70 
480.45 
-21.82 

1,059.96 
3,689.53 
649A4 

269.64 
4,480.59 

3,478.38 
691.32 

1,269.35 
640.97 

739.35 
7,912.00 

7,000.00 

6,500.00 

Hand Held Scanner 
Software 
2 Notebook Computers 

Ink Cartridges 
5 Computers 

Ink Cartridges 
Ink Cartridges 
5 Computers 
Ink Cartridges 

Educational Videos 
Edicational Software 
37 Surge Protectors 

Reimb. For Purchases from School Acet 
3 Laser Jet Printers 

3 Computers 
42 Head Phones 

Digital Camera 
8 Computers 

655.75 Blank Tapes 
295.00 5 VCR's 

2,162.92 2 Computers 
156.00 " " 

1,862.00 2 Computers 
116.00 

241.00 

Attachm ent 2 
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Summer Remediation 

M iddle Schoo l Textbooks 

Path To Excellence 

BPCC 1st Grade Play 

5th Grade Symphony 

Video Conferencing 

Junior Achievemenl 

Youlh Concert - 5th Grade 

M iscellaneous 

TOTAL 

VENDOR 

Charism 
Options Pub. 

School Book 
School Book 
School Book 

BEEF 
EXPENDITURE DETAIL 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 

Airline High 

Cavalier Players 

S'port Symphony 

Long's Elee. 
Intermedia 
Dell 

Junior Achievement 

M/M  Brown 

AM OUNT DESCRIFI'ION 

10,320.00 LEAP Books 
1,680.00 Books 

74,733.81 
24,475.60 
73.741.10 

1,000.00 

3,000.00 

3.936.00 

Textbooks 
Textbooks 
Textbooks 

597.00 3 TV Carts 
2,348.00 1 RGB Visual Presenter 
6,875.85 3 Computers, 3 Presentation M onitors 

3,000.00 

1.453.45 

2,850.74 

485,203.33 

See accompanying independent accountants' report on applying agreed-upo n procedures. 

Attachm ent 2 



 



Sum m ary of Prior Year Audit Findings 

01-1 The School Board developed and im plemented a centralized, comprehensive listing 
of fixed assets. A complete district-wide inventory was taken in the spring of 2002. 

01-2 The School Board im plem ented a district-wide asset disposal policy training for all 
schools. The schools and centers report any disposals on a m onthly basis. This 
report is sent in with m onthly financial reports. 

01-3 The School Board has and will perform  the calculation as recom m end by the 

Federal Department of Education for section 8003 (d) funds. Section 8003 (d) 
funds are com pared with total expenditures as prescribed in the above calculation to 
insure expenditures are greater than section 8003 (d) fund received. 

01-4 W hen perform ing budget-to-actual reviews, budget revisions are recom m ended to 
the School Boar d if a negative variance exist and will exceed the budget by five 
percent or m ore. 



BOSSIER PARISH SCHOO L BO ARD 
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Benton, Louisiana 71006-2000 
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uperintendent 
December 20, 2002 

Michael M. Graham 
3039 Highway 154 
Elm Grove, LA 71051 
District I 

Henry Burns 
134 Chimney Drive 
Haughton, LA 71037 
District 2 

George C. Finck 
167 Beaver Lane 
Benton, LA 71006 
District 3 
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Fm idmt 
P.O. Box 231 
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District 4 

Elizabeth S. Casslbry 
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Bossier City, LA 711]] 
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Kenneth M. W iggins 
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700 Shaver Street 
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Dr. Daniel (i. Kyle, CPA 
I,ouisiaoa I,cgislative Auditor 
Post Office Box 94397 
Baton Rouge. Louisian a 70804-9397 

Vassle M . Richardson 
President 

Dear Dr. Kyle: 

Please consider the following responses to the comments and recommendations provided 
in the audit of our finan cial statements Ibr the year ended June 30, 2002: 

LEGISLATIVE ALII)ITOR 

The School Board has implemented the suggested corrective actions. 

M AIN FRAM E ACCESS CONI'ROI,S 

Security Awareness information will be provided at monthly Principals meetings to be 
dissem inated to school staffand to supptn-! staff. Passwords will co ntinue to be  changed 
on a quarterly basis. 

NETW ORK ACCESS CONTROI+S 

Network segmentation will be exantined tbr sensitive information on tile mainfi-ame tn 
end user computers. Cost will be determ ined. W e are currently taking bids tbr work on 
our network. 

Data processing will develop a process to track ch an ges made to inlbrmatinn in the School 
Board's mainfi'ame computer . Th e School Board has approved  hardware upgrades an d a 
new operating system. 

BUSINESS CONTINUITY 

"rite Sch oo l Board will develop a detailed business continuity plan  to ensure that 
adm inistrative and operational thnctions surrounding tech nology can be  continued in th e 
even t of an y sort of disaster. Lafourche Parish School Board uses the sam e hardware and 
software as Bossier Sch oo l Board and would be a very viable source for business 
continuity. 

BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOl, 8Y~'T F. M 
"An Equel Opportunity Edu~tio ml Agency 



 

Dr. Daniel G. Kyle, CPA 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor 
December 20, 2002 
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Personnel independent of the cash receipts and reconciliatian  function will review the cash receipts 
reconciliation each men th to ensur e the reconciliation  is done accurately, totals on the log agree to the 
ledg~ and that all reconciling items are dealt with appropriately. 

The School Board will contact those individuals or companies who have on daimed property held by the 
School Board. If this pr operty can not be given to the rightful owner, then it wi ll be  sent to the state in a 
tim ely m anner. 

Th e Schoo l Board will research  a new procedure to ensure segregation duties in the payroll area. 

The cash disbur semen t function of the child nutritlon  pr ogram has been cen~-alized with the finance 
departmen t ofthe School Board. Procedur es wi ll be  chan ged for supervisor approval ofnon-food/non - 
kitchen  supply purch ases. Th is ch ange will be documented. Cmren tly, the Director of Finan ce does 
approve all purchases over $500. 

Average daily atten d~ ee will be documen ted by the Data Pr ocessing Departmm t an d kept on file with the 
Im pact Aid Application . 

All project completion reports will be reconciled to the general ledger in a timely mvaner 

The Schoo l Board will im plemen t a procedur e to reconcile depreciation  expense and accum ulated  
depreciation . 

If we can pr ovide furtbe ~ information  please let us know 

Sincerely, 

Frank Rougeau 
Director of Finance 




